
City of Ridgecrest           Kern County             Inyo County          San Bernardino County          Indian Wells Valley Water District 

 

INDIAN WELLS VALLEY 

GROUNDWATER AUTHORITY 
Ridgecrest City Hall         100 W California Ave., Ridgecrest, CA 93555      760-499-5002 

 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

A G E N D A 
Thursday, June 21, 2018 

Closed Session 10:00 a.m. 

Open Session 11:00 a.m. 

 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you are a disabled person and you need a 

disability-related modification or accommodation to participate in this meeting, please contact Ricca 

Charlon at (760) 499-5002.  Requests must be made as early as possible and at least one full business day 

before the start of the meeting. Documents and material relating to an open session agenda items that are 

provided to the IWVGA Board of Directors prior to a regular meeting will be available for public inspection 

and copying at Indian Wells Valley Water District, 500 Ridgecrest Blvd, Ridgecrest, CA 93555, or online 

at https://iwvga.org/. 
 

Statements from the Public 

The public will be allowed to address the Board during Public Comments about subjects within the 

jurisdiction of the IWVGA Board and that are NOT on the agenda. No action may be taken on off-agenda 

items unless authorized by law. Questions posed to the Board may be answered after the meeting or at 

future meeting. Dialog or extended discussion between the public and the Board or staff will be limited in 

accordance with the Brown Act.  The Public Comments portion of the meeting shall be limited to three (3) 

minutes per speaker.  Each person is limited to one comment during Public Comments.  
 

All remarks and questions should be addressed to the Board as a whole and not to any individual Board 

member or staff. There will be time after each action item on the agenda to receive comments from the 

public.  Again each speaker will be limited to three (3) minutes.  Speakers should be brief and limit their 

comments to the specific subject being discussed.  Persons will be limited to one comment per person unless 

directed by the Chair. 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
 

2. CLOSED SESSION  

a. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 

(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2)(e)(1)) Number of cases: One (1) Significant 

exposure to litigation in the opinion of the Board of Directors on the advice of legal 

counsel, based on: Facts and circumstances that might result in litigation against the 

IWVGA but which are not yet known to a potential plaintiff or plaintiffs, which facts and 

circumstances need not be disclosed 
 

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

This time is reserved for the public to address the Board about matters NOT on the agenda. No 

action will be taken on non-agenda items unless authorized by law. Comments are limited to three 

minutes per person.  
 

 

 

https://iwvga.org/


2 | P a g e  

IWVGA Board of Directors 

Meeting of June 21, 2018 
 

4. PRESENTATIONS 

a. United States Geological Survey (USGS) to update progress on the Recharge Study of the 

Indian Wells Valley Basin 
 

5. CONSENT AGENDA  

a. Approve Minutes of Board Meeting May 17, 2018 

b. Approve Expenditures 

i. Stetson Engineering – $75,137.70 

ii. Daily Independent $461.76, $187.53,  & $132.60 

iii. Packwrap $207.67  

c. Financial Report 

d. Search for Grant Funding to Assist IWVGA Activities 
 

6. WATER RESOURCES MANAGER REPORT  

a. Report/Discussion on Plan of Action and Milestones (POAM) 

b. Report on Submittal of Proposition 1 Grant Application Status 

c. Discussion/Approval of Draft Well Registration Form, Reporting Form and Draft FAQ 

d. TSS Grant Application Status 
 

7. CONSIDERATION OF AMENDMENT TO ADVANCED FUNDS AGREEMENT WITH 

INDIAN WELLS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
 

8. PUBLIC MEETING PURSUANT TO WATER CODE SECTION 10730 TO IMPOSE 

GROUNDWATER EXTRACTION FEES TO FINANCE DEVELOPMENT AND 

ADOPTION OF A GROUNDWATER SUSTAINABILITY PLAN AND IWVGA 

ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS 
 

9. FIRST READING OF A REVISED ORDINANCE, ORDINANCE 02-18, ESTABLISHING 

THE RULES, REGULATIONS AND PROCEDURES FOR THE IMPOSITION AND 

COLLECTION OF GROUNDWATER EXTRACTION FEES 
 

10. REVIEW OF PROTOCOL FOR TAC MEETINGS  
 

11. REPORT FROM TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE (TAC) 
 

12. REPORT FROM POLICY ADVISORY COMMITTEE (PAC) 
 

13. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 
 

14. CLOSING COMMENTS 
 

15. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING – July 19, 2018; 10:00 a.m. 
 

16. CLOSED SESSION  

b. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 

(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2)(e)(1)) Number of cases: One (1) Significant 

exposure to litigation in the opinion of the Board of Directors on the advice of legal 

counsel, based on: Facts and circumstances that might result in litigation against the 

IWVGA but which are not yet known to a potential plaintiff or plaintiffs, which facts and 

circumstances need not be disclosed 

 

17. ADJOURN 



INDIAN WELLS VALLEY 

GROUNDWATER AUTHORITY 
                           City of Ridgecrest, Kern County, Inyo County, San Bernardino County, Indian Wells Valley Water District 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

MINUTES 
Thursday, May 17, 2018, 10:00 a.m. 

 

IWVGA Members Present:  

 

Meeting recording and public comment letters submitted are made available at: 

https://iwvga.org/iwvga-meetings/ 

 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER: 
The meeting is called to order by Chairwoman Breeden at 10:01 a.m. 

 

The Pledge of Allegiance is led by Heather Steele of Stetson Engineers. 

 

2. PUBLIC COMMENTS: 

Carol Wilson submits a comment letter suggesting alternatives to imposing pumping fees.  

 

Stan Rajtora asks that alternative locations be discussed to accommodate the IWVGA Technical 

Advisory Committee (TAC) meetings.   He also asks the Board to review the bylaws and provide 

a clear definition of the voting within the TAC.  He concludes by saying a discussion needs to be 

had regarding what a true de-minimis user is.  

 

Judie Decker asks the Board who is in charge of the IWVGA.  

 

Sophia Merk concurs with Mr. Rajtora and Ms. Decker’s comments and asks the Board to 

review the bylaws.  She states it is unclear who is in charge. 

 

Doreen Conaway Baker asks the Board what the definition of a de-minimis user is and if the 

Board knows the size of wells and pumps being used by private well owners. 

 

Diana Mooney comments that flyers should be sent to the public educating and promoting water 

conservation.  

 

Renee Westa-Lusk comments that at the last TAC meeting there was discussion about voting 

abilities.  She asks the Board if the TAC can vote, if not when did that change?  Does that also 

apply to the PAC?  

 

Commander Brian Longbottom, Dept. of the Navy Mick Gleason, Kern County  

Chuck Griffin, Indian Wells Valley Water District Bob Page, San Bernardino County 

Chairperson Peggy Breeden, City of Ridgecrest Ron Strand, IWVGA General Manager 

Stephen Johnson, IWVGA Water Resources Manager Lauren Duffy, IWVGA Board Clerk 

Keith Lemieux, IWVGA Legal Counsel  

  

https://iwvga.org/iwvga-meetings/
rcharlon
Typewritten Text
ITEM 5a



 

2 | P a g e  

IWVGA Board of Directors - Meeting on May 17, 2018 

 

 3. PRESENTATIONS: 

a. United States Geological Survey (USGS) to update progress on the Recharge Study of 

the Indian Wells Valley Basin. 

 

The presentation is cancelled due to USGS staff unable to attend the meeting. 

   

4. CONSENT AGENDA: 

a. Approve Minutes of Board Meeting April 19, 2018 

b. Approve Minutes of Board Workshop April 5, 2018 

c. Approve Expenditures 

i. Stetson Engineering $60,517.77 

d. Financial Report – item deferred for further discussion and separate vote. 

 

Bob Page requests that item #4d be deferred for further discussion. 

 

Motion made by Mick Gleason and seconded by Bob Page to approve item #4a Minutes of 

Board Meeting April 19, 2018, item #4b Minutes of Board Workshop April 5, 2018, and item 

#4c Expenditures for Stetson Engineering in the amount of $60,517.77.   Motion carried.   (Ayes:  

Breeden, Gleason, Griffin, Page. Abstain: None. Nays:  None. Absent: Kingsley) 

 

Bob Page asks for clarification that the April invoice just approved by the Board and any 

subsequent invoices from Stetson Engineering will not be paid until additional revenue is 

received.  Mr. Page further asks if the financial report, which has been presented at several 

meetings, is sufficient for those who have asked for a standing financial committee.   

 

The Board opens the floor to the public asking what they hope to achieve by developing a 

finance committee which has not already been addressed through the financial reports.  

 

Public making comment is Stan Rajtora, Derek Hoffman, Judie Decker, Doreen Baker, Carol 

Wilson, Joshua Nugent, Anita Imsand, and Sophia Merk. 

 

Staff comments on the excessive extra costs that may accrue if another committee is established.  

 

Commander Longbottom asks if in the contract with Stetson Engineers there is a contractual 

requirement to pay the invoices within a certain time, and is interest accruing?  Stetson Engineers 

had previously stated they would withhold invoices while the IWVGA awaits funds.  

Commander Longbottom also asks if the IWVGA, as a board and organization, is allowed to go 

into debt.  Steve Johnson is not sure about those specifics in the contract, but he will double 

check and states Stetson Engineers will not charge interest.  Commander Longbottom asks that if 

such wording is in the contract then it needs to be removed.  

 

Legal counsel comments the IWVGA can go into debt if needed, but does not believe it is 

currently in debt.   

 

Motion made by Bob Page and seconded by Mick Gleason to receive and file agenda item #4d 

Financial Report.   Motion carried.   (Ayes:  Breeden, Gleason, Griffin, Page. Abstain: None. 

Nays:  None. Absent: Kingsley) 

 

5. WATER REOURCES MANAGER REPORT: 



 

3 | P a g e  

IWVGA Board of Directors - Meeting on May 17, 2018 

 

  

a. Report/Discussion on Plan of Action and Milestones (POAM) 

Heather Steele of Stetson Engineers presents an updated POAM and reviews edits made. Ms. 

Steele announces that Desert Research Institute (DRI) has been given notice to proceed with the 

modeling work that they are contracted with the Navy to do. 

  

Mick Gleason asks staff for better representation of PAC responsibilities on the POAM.  He also 

asks that staff revise the POAM to reflect Board expenditures.  

 

b. Report on Submittal of Proposition 1 Grant Application Status: 

Steve Johnson updates the Board on the progress of the Prop. 1 Grant Application.  The IWVGA 

received a letter from the state confirming the award of the Grant funding.  The next step is to 

review internally with staff and possibly with the TAC any scope budget changes that need to be 

made.  Once the state approves the scope of work plan, an agreement will need to be executed 

along with environmental documents that will need to be filled out.   

 

The Board hears comments from Derek Hoffman and Stan Rajtora. 

 

Bob Page suggests the following changes of the General Manager Job description, specifically 

on the bullet points of responsibilities: 

 Point #3 – suggests revising the wording.  The WRM will largely handle the development 

of the GSP. 

 Point #4 & #8 – Ensuring that the intent is for the General Manager to manage the WRM 

contract, not just reviewing their work.   

 Point #12 – remove words “Coordination Agreement” as it does not apply to this GSA. 

 

Motion made by Mick Gleason and seconded by Bob Page to approve the job description of the 

General Manager with the aforementioned edits and authorizes staff to recruit.   Motion carried.   

(Ayes:  Breeden, Gleason, Griffin, Page. Abstain: None. Nays:  None. Absent: Kingsley) 

 

c. Authorization to sign letter accepting grant: 

Steve Johnson comments that the state does not require any additional authorization.  

 

6. DISCUSSION AND APPROVAL OF A PART TIME GENERAL MANAGER JOB 

DESCRIPTION AND CORRESPONDING RECRUITMENT FLYER - 

CHRISTENSEN: 
Alan Christensen provides a memorandum from IWVGA Staff with respect to an IWVGA 

General Manager Job description and recruitment.  The IWVGA Board directed staff to recruit a 

General Manager to lead the IWVGA at the staff level going forward.  Staff recommends that 

upon the approval of the job description, a recruitment would commence on or close to May 28, 

2018.  Recruitment is expected to be closed by June 30th.  Staff further recommends the approval 

of the General Manager job description and requests authorization to recruit for the position.   

 

7. INTRODUCE ORDINANCE 02-18 ESTABLISHING THE RULES, REGULATIONS 

AND PROCEDURES FOR THE IMPOSITION AND COLLECTION OF 

GROUNDWATER EXTRACTION FEES: 

Phill Hall, legal counsel, provides an introduction of Ordinance 02-18,  Resolution 03-18, and 

also the data package which will be presented at the June 21st Meeting.  The data package will be 



 

4 | P a g e  

IWVGA Board of Directors - Meeting on May 17, 2018 

 

 sent out 20 days prior to the next IWVGA Board Meeting for public comment.  This specific 

Ordinance requires an introduction at one meeting and adoption at the next regular Board 

Meeting.  This Ordinance does not specifically set a volumetric fee, however it does set some 

parameters on how the fee will be charged.  It requires wells to register so the IWVGA will be 

aware of what wells are within the area.  Mr. Hall reviews Ordinance No. 02-18 and explains that 

the Resolution 03-18 sets up the volumetric fee, which is supported by the staff report and data 

package.   

Staff recommends that the Board introduce the Ordinance and also set the hearing at the meeting 

to include the data package and set the volumetric fee.  Once an Ordinance is adopted it takes 30 

days for it to become effective.  Mr. Hall explains the idea behind having a Resolution and 

Ordinance is so that if in the future changes need to be made to the fee, it can be changed rather 

quickly through the Resolution.   

James Worth, legal counsel, reviews the Groundwater Pumping Fee Data Package.  

Staff recommends the Board adopt a fee pursuant to California Water Code §10730, which was 

enacted through the California Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA).  

The Board hears comments from Elaine Mead, Joshua Nugent, Stan Rajtora, Renee Westa-Lusk, 

Judie Decker, Derek Hoffman, Donna Thomas, Claudia Ethun, and Mike Neel. 

Phill Hall clarifies that de-minimis users will have to register their well, however they will not be 

subject to the pumping fee.  Mr. Hall adds that users run the risk of having water shut off if they 

do not register their well by October 1st.  Under SGMA, the IWVGA does not have the authority 

to go out and shut off a de-minimis users well, it would become a civil case.  

Steve Johnson comments that they intend to distribute an informational notice to everyone they 

have listed after the fee is implemented.  The notice will include a questionnaire, the registration 

form, and contact information if help is needed. The notice will be sent out by May 31st to 

include the date of the hearing adopting the Resolution and Fee. 

Chairwoman Breeden asks the staff if a special meeting could be held prior to the June 21st 

Regular Board meeting.  Staff suggests a FAQ (frequently asked questions) document explaining 

what has happened thus far, what is to be expected, and an explanation on “de-minimis users” to 

be attached to the notice distributed.  

Staff recommends that the Board make a finding that the proposed Ordinance is exempt from 

further environmental review pursuant to California Environmental Quality Act Guidelines 

section 15273 and Public Resources section 21080(b)(8) because it is the establishment of 

operational rates and charges. Additionally, it has been determined that this action is exempt 

from further environmental review pursuant Guidelines section 15061(b)(3) because it can be 

seen with a certainty that this action will not have significant effect on the environment.  

Moreover, it has been determined that this action is exempt from further environmental review  

pursuant Guidelines section 15378(b)(5) because it involves administrative activities that will not 

result in direct or indirect physical changes to the environment.  

Phill Hall introduces, by reading aloud its title, Ordinance No. 02-18 establishing the Rules, 

Regulations and Procedures for the Imposition and Collection of Groundwater Extraction Fees.   



 

5 | P a g e  

IWVGA Board of Directors - Meeting on May 17, 2018 

 

 Motion made by Mick Gleason and seconded by Bob Page to approve staffs aforementioned 

recommendation and set the Hearing for the Resolution and fee for June 21st, the next Regular 

Board meeting of the IWVGA.   Motion carried.   (Ayes:  Breeden, Gleason, Griffin, Page. 

Abstain: None. Nays:  None. Absent: Kingsley) 

 

The Board agrees to schedule an “informational only” meeting on June 7th, to allow staff to 

present information with respect to the pumping fees to the public.   

 

Motion made by Mick Gleason and seconded by Bob Page to waive reading the entire Ordinance 

No. 02-18.   Motion carried.   (Ayes:  Breeden, Gleason, Griffin, Page. Abstain: None. Nays:  

None. Absent: Kingsley) 

 

8. DISCUSSION AND APPROVAL OF IWVGA-DESERT RESEARCH INSTITUTE 

(DRI) MODELING SUPPORT AGREEMENT: 

Steve Johnson comments that the modeling effort which needs to be done for the GSP involves 

the Navy and DRI.  DRI currently has the model under an agreement with the Navy.  The intent 

is to establish an agreement between the IWVGA and DRI, so that the IWVGA could utilize the 

model for purposes of the GSP.  A draft agreement and Scope of Work were presented at the 

May 3rd TAC meeting and modifications were made.  The contract with DRI is an open ended 

contract so that DRI would be able to work with the IWVGA until the GSP is developed and not 

just with the model.  

The WRM recommends that the Board approve the agreement with DRI to be signed by the 

General Manager.  

Motion made by Bob Page and seconded by Mick Gleason to authorize the General Manager to 

execute this agreement with Desert Research Institute.   Motion carried.   (Ayes:  Breeden, 

Gleason, Page. Abstain: Griffin. Nays:  None. Absent: Kingsley) 

 

9. DISCUSSION AND APPROVAL OF RFP FOR IWVGA WATER AUDIT 

PROGRAM: 

a. Subject to execution of Proposition 1 Grant Agreement. 

Steve Johnson comments on the Request for Proposal (RFP) for the IWVGA Water Audit 

Program, as well as the RFP for the IWVGA Rebates Program. 

 

The RFPs will not be issued until after full confirmation of Prop. 1 funding is received. 

Motion made by Mick Gleason and seconded by Chuck Griffin to authorize staff to issue the 

RFP for IWVGA Water Audit Program and the RFP for the IWVGA Rebates Program once 

Prop. 1 funding confirmation is received.   Motion carried.   (Ayes:  Breeden, Gleason, Griffin, 

Page. Abstain: None Nays:  None. Absent: Kingsley) 

 

10. DISCUSSION AND APPROVAL OF RFP FOR IWVGA REBATES PROGRAM: 

a. Subject to execution of Proposition 1 Grant Agreement. 

See above motion.  

 

11. REPORT FROM TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE (TAC): 

Adam Bingham, TAC Chairperson, provides a report from the May 3, 2018, TAC meeting.  

 



 

6 | P a g e  

IWVGA Board of Directors - Meeting on May 17, 2018 

 

 Going forward the minutes of the TAC meetings will be digital and not written.  Digital 

recordings of the TAC meetings will be posted on the IWVGA website.  

 

12. REPORT FROM POLICY ADVISORY COMMITTEE (PAC): 

Donna Thomas, PAC Chairwoman, comments that the PAC meeting scheduled for May 3rd was 

cancelled.  Chairwoman Thomas reviews the PAC report.   

 

13. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT: 

Ron Strand reports that the format for the Speakers Bureau has been set up.  Directors will be 

notified shortly. 

 

14. CLOSING COMMENTS:  

Chairwoman Breeden asks for an agenda item at the next meeting for the ad-hoc finance 

committee to review the need for a standing finance committee.   

 

15. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING:   

The next IWVGA Regular Board Meeting will be held on June 21, 2018; at 10:00 a.m. 

 

With no further Board or Public comments, Chairwoman Breeden adjourns to Closed Session at 

2:25 p.m. 

16. CLOSED SESSION: 

a. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION 

(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2)(e)(1)) Number of cases: One (1) 

Significant exposure to litigation in the opinion of the Board of Directors on the 

advice of legal counsel, based on: Facts and circumstances that might result in 

litigation against the IWVGA but which are not yet known to a potential plaintiff or 

plaintiffs, which facts and circumstances need not be disclosed. 

b. Public Employee Performance Evaluation – District Counsel (GC§54957) 

c. Public Employee Performance Evaluation – General Manager (GC§54957) 

d. Public Employee Performance Evaluation – Water Resource Manager (GC§54957) 

 

No action is taken that would require disclosure under the Brown Act. 

 

17. ADJOURN: 

With no further business to come before the Board, the meeting is adjourned at 3:06 p.m. 

 

Respectfully submitted, 

 

 

 

Lauren Duffy 

Clerk of the Board of Directors 

Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Authority 
 



Water Resources Management
01 - Prep & Attend Board,PAC & TAC Mtgs/Consult w/ Authority & Committees to Dev

Professional Services ChargeBill RateBill Hours

Principal $5,405.0023.50 $230.00
Supervisor I $3,800.0019.00 $200.00
Associate I $3,220.0028.00 $115.00

$12,425.00Professional Services Subtotal:
Reimbursables Charge

Reproduction (Color) $30.26
Lodging $191.30
Meals $45.17
Mileage $457.80

$724.53Reimbursables Subtotal:

$13,149.53Prep & Attend Board,PAC & TAC Mtgs/Consult w/ Authority & Committees to Dev 
02 - Preparation of Prop 1 Application Grant Funding/DWR Coordn/Auth Financial Plan

Professional Services ChargeBill RateBill Hours

Principal $575.002.50 $230.00
$575.00Professional Services Subtotal:

$575.00Preparation of Prop 1 Application Grant Funding/DWR Coordn/Auth Financial Pla
03 - Review of Basin GW Model - GSP Compliance/Prep HCM

Professional Services ChargeBill RateBill Hours

Supervisor II $92.500.50 $185.00
$92.50Professional Services Subtotal:

$92.50Review of Basin GW Model - GSP Compliance/Prep HCM Subtotal:
04.01 - Data Gaps

Professional Services ChargeBill RateBill Hours

Principal $4,140.0018.00 $230.00
Supervisor II $6,105.0033.00 $185.00
Associate I $57.500.50 $115.00
GIS Manager $2,213.7519.25 $115.00
Assistant III $765.009.00 $85.00

$13,281.25Professional Services Subtotal:
Reimbursables Charge

Car Rental $19.71
Lodging $116.94
Meals $29.00

Invoice

County of Kern Invoice Number: 2652-09
County Administrative Office
1115 Truxtun Ave., 5th Floor Invoice Date: 6/12/2018
Bakersfield CA  93301
ATTN.: Mr. Alan Christensen

Project #: 2652 Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Authority

Professional Services through 4/30/2018

rcharlon
Typewritten Text
ITEM 5b-i

rcharlon
Typewritten Text



Project #: 2652 2652-09Invoice No:

June 12, 2018

Page 2

04.01 - Data Gaps

$165.65Reimbursables Subtotal:

$13,446.90Data Gaps Subtotal:
04.02 - Data Management System

Professional Services ChargeBill RateBill Hours

Principal $1,035.004.50 $230.00
Associate I $977.508.50 $115.00

$2,012.50Professional Services Subtotal:
Reimbursables Charge

Car Rental $77.80
Lodging                                                                                                                                              $116.94
Meals $78.28
Mileage $6.54
Personal Aircraft Mileage $373.42

$652.98Reimbursables Subtotal:

$2,665.48Data Management System Subtotal:
05 - Project Management Costs & Schedule

Professional Services ChargeBill RateBill Hours

Principal $1,150.005.00 $230.00
Supervisor I $200.001.00 $200.00
Associate I $2,242.5019.50 $115.00
Associate III $577.505.50 $105.00

$4,170.00Professional Services Subtotal:

$4,170.00Project Management Costs & Schedule Subtotal:
05A - POAM

Professional Services ChargeBill RateBill Hours

Supervisor I $200.001.00 $200.00
Supervisor II $185.001.00 $185.00
Associate I $862.507.50 $115.00

$1,247.50Professional Services Subtotal:

$1,247.50POAM Subtotal:
06 - IWVGW Basin 3rd Party Sustainability/Safe Yield Rev (GSP Compliance)/Numerica

Professional Services ChargeBill RateBill Hours

Principal $575.002.50 $230.00
Supervisor II $3,977.5021.50 $185.00
Administrative I $35.000.50 $70.00

$4,587.50Professional Services Subtotal:

$4,587.50IWVGW Basin 3rd Party Sustainability/Safe Yield Rev (GSP Compliance)/Numerica
07 - IWVGW Basin Opptys & Constraints for Alt Imported Water Supplies

Professional Services ChargeBill RateBill Hours

Supervisor I $1,700.008.50 $200.00
Supervisor II $92.500.50 $185.00
Associate I $2,501.2521.75 $115.00
Assistant II $1,822.5020.25 $90.00

$6,116.25Professional Services Subtotal:
Reimbursables Charge



Project #: 2652 2652-09Invoice No:

June 12, 2018

Page 3

07 - IWVGW Basin Opptys & Constraints for Alt Imported Water Supplies
Reimbursables Charge

Mileage $152.60
$152.60Reimbursables Subtotal:

$6,268.85IWVGW Basin Opptys & Constraints for Alt Imported Water Supplies Subtotal:
09 - Other Ongoing Studies/Review (Brackish Water, USGS Recharge, Subsidence, Geop

Professional Services ChargeBill RateBill Hours

Principal $460.002.00 $230.00
Supervisor I $1,600.008.00 $200.00
Assistant II $5,917.5065.75 $90.00

$7,977.50Professional Services Subtotal:

$7,977.50Other Ongoing Studies/Review (Brackish Water, USGS Recharge, Subsidence, Geop
11.01 - GSP Projects & Testing: Monitoring Wells

Professional Services ChargeBill RateBill Hours

Supervisor III $810.004.50 $180.00
$810.00Professional Services Subtotal:

$810.00GSP Projects & Testing: Monitoring Wells Subtotal:
11.05 - GSP Projects & Testing: Aquifer Tests

Professional Services ChargeBill RateBill Hours

Assistant III $255.003.00 $85.00
$255.00Professional Services Subtotal:

$255.00GSP Projects & Testing: Aquifer Tests Subtotal:
12 - SDAC Projects; Water Conservation & Rebate Program

Professional Services ChargeBill RateBill Hours

Senior II $1,885.0013.00 $145.00
$1,885.00Professional Services Subtotal:

$1,885.00SDAC Projects; Water Conservation & Rebate Program Subtotal:
13 - SDAC Projects: Water Audit, Leak Detection & Leak Rpr Program

Professional Services ChargeBill RateBill Hours

Supervisor I $200.001.00 $200.00
Senior II $3,770.0026.00 $145.00

$3,970.00Professional Services Subtotal:

$3,970.00SDAC Projects: Water Audit, Leak Detection & Leak Rpr Program Subtotal:
14 - Pumping Assessment Support

Professional Services ChargeBill RateBill Hours

Principal $3,910.0017.00 $230.00
Supervisor I $400.002.00 $200.00
Associate I $8,855.0077.00 $115.00
Associate III $52.500.50 $105.00
Assistant II $900.0010.00 $90.00

$14,117.50Professional Services Subtotal:
Reimbursables Charge

Reproduction (Color) $3.56
Reproduction $10.35
Telephone - Conference Call $12.40

$26.31Reimbursables Subtotal:



Project #: 2652 2652-09Invoice No:

June 12, 2018

Page 4

$14,143.81Pumping Assessment Support Subtotal:

Water Resources Management Subtotal: $75,244.57

$75,244.57*** Invoice Total ***

Credit Amount: $106.87

Total Amount Due: $75,137.70



REIMBURSABLES SUMMARY

County of Kern Invoice Number: 2652-09
County Administrative Office
1115 Truxtun Ave., 5th Floor Invoice Date: 6/12/2018
Bakersfield CA  93301
ATTN.: Mr. Alan Christensen

Project #: 2652 Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Authority

Professional Services through 4/30/2018

Water Resources Management
01 - Prep & Attend Board,PAC & TAC Mtgs/Consult w/ Authority & Committees to Dev GSP

Reimbursables
Description Date Units Unit Rate Charge Notes
Lodging 04/05/2018 1.00 $191.30$191.30
Meals 04/05/2018 1.00 $45.17$45.17
Mileage 04/05/2018 280.00 $152.60$0.545
Mileage 04/19/2018 280.00 $152.60$0.545
Mileage 04/19/2018 280.00 $152.60$0.545
Reproduction (Color) 04/30/2018 34.00 $30.26$0.89

$724.53Prep & Attend Board,PAC & TAC Mtgs/Consult w/ Authority &

04.01 - Data Gaps
Reimbursables
Description Date Units Unit Rate Charge
Meals 04/10/2018 1.00 $29.00$29.00
Car Rental 04/11/2018 1.00 $19.71$19.71
Lodging 04/11/2018 1.00 $116.94$116.94

$165.65Data Gaps Sub-Total:

04.02 - Data Management System
Reimbursables
Description Date Units Unit Rate Charge Notes
Car Rental 04/10/2018 1.00 $77.80$77.80
Lodging                                                             04/10/2018               1.00         $116.94                  $116.94
Meals 04/10/2018 1.00 $55.26$55.26
Mileage 04/10/2018 12.00 $6.54$0.545
Personal Aircraft Mileage 04/10/2018 289.47 $373.42$1.29
Meals 04/11/2018 1.00 $23.02$23.02

$652.98Data Management System Sub-Total:

07 - IWVGW Basin Opptys & Constraints for Alt Imported Water Supplies
Reimbursables
Description Date Units Unit Rate Charge Notes
Mileage 04/05/2018 280.00 $152.60$0.545

$152.60IWVGW Basin Opptys & Constraints for Alt Imported Water Supplies

14 - Pumping Assessment Support

Reimbursables
Description Date Units Unit Rate Charge Notes
Telephone - Conference Call 04/03/2018 1.00 $12.40$12.40
Reproduction 04/30/2018 69.00 $10.35$0.15
Reproduction (Color) 04/30/2018 4.00 $3.56$0.89

$26.31Pumping Assessment Support Sub-Total:





















rcharlon
Typewritten Text
ITEM 5b-ii







The Daily Independent
P.O. Box 7
Ridgecrest, CA 93556

Office Hours: Mon - Fri.

8:30 am - 2.30 pm

Phone  Number: 760-375-4481

Fax Number: 760-375-4880

City of Ridgecrest

100 W. California Ave

Ridgecrest, CA

93555 Invoice 6/5/2018

Account #103108

Date Description Lines Amount

6-Jun-18 Legal pub Run 1 NOPM IWVGA 6/21 133.00 103.74$        

13-Jun-18 Legal pub Run 2 NOPM IWVGA 6/21 133.00 83.79$          

Total $187.53

rcharlon
Typewritten Text

rcharlon
Typewritten Text
ITEM 5b-ii

rcharlon
Typewritten Text





rcharlon
Typewritten Text
ITEM 5b-ii





Signature ____________________________________________________________

PackWrap Business Center, Inc.

1500 McLean St.
Ridgecrest, CA  93555
(760)446-3010
packwrap@hotmail.com
www.packwrapprint.com

INVOICE
BILL TO

IWV Groundwater Authority
500 W. Ridgecrest Blvd.
Ridgecrest, CA 93555

INVOICE # 35793
DATE 05/31/2018

DUE DATE 06/30/2018
TERMS Net 30 Days

  

P.O. NUMBER SALES REP
Ricca Charlon Mary Boster

ACTIVITY QTY RATE AMOUNT

465 Postcards for Special Meeting Notice 465 0.10 46.50T

465 Mail Processing 465 0.05 23.25T

Bulk Mail Postage - 387 Cards 1 100.97 100.97

USPS Shipping 1 31.20 31.20

 

Thank you for your business with Packwrap. Please check out our 

website at www.packwrapprint.com.

SUBTOTAL 201.92
TAX (8.25%) 5.75
TOTAL 207.67
BALANCE DUE $207.67

rcharlon
Typewritten Text
ITEM 5b-iii



6/13/2018 3:18:17 PM

AcctNo AccountName Crdt/Dbt BeginningBalance YTD_Debit YTD_Credit CurrentBalance

FundNo: 42927, FundName: INDIAN WELLS VLY GRDWATER JPA

  AccountType: Asset

0110 CASH IN TREASURY Debit 74,364.80 481,053.56 503,008.55 52,409.81

      Total AccountType: Asset 74,364.80 481,053.56 503,008.55 52,409.81

  AccountType: Liability

1010 WARRANTS PAYABLE Credit 0.00 492,262.63 492,262.63 0.00

1012 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE Credit 0.00 492,262.63 492,262.63 0.00

1320 LOANS PAYABLE Credit 0.00 100,000.00 100,000.00 0.00

1326 LOAN PAYABLE - OTHER Credit 0.00 0.00 277,862.90 -277,862.90

      Total AccountType: Liability 0.00 1,084,525.26 1,362,388.16 -277,862.90

  AccountType: Net Asset or Fund Balance

2350 FUND BALANCE AVAILABLE Credit -74,364.80 503,008.55 16.72 428,627.03

2410 ESTIMATED REVENUES Debit 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

2710 REVENUES Credit 0.00 277,862.90 481,036.84 -203,173.94

2990 BUDGETARY CLEARING Debit 0.00 277,862.90 277,862.90 0.00

      Total AccountType: Net Asset or Fund Balance -74,364.80 1,058,734.35 758,916.46 225,453.09

    Total FundNo: 42927, FundName: INDIAN WELLS VLY GRDWATER JPA 0.00 2,624,313.17 2,624,313.17 0.00

0.00 2,624,313.17 2,624,313.17 0.00

General Ledger Balance Sheet - (FOS)

((AsOfDate Equals today) AND (IsYearEnd Equals false) AND (FundNo Equals 42927))

1 / 1

rcharlon
Typewritten Text
ITEM 5c



6/13/2018 3:24:49 PM

FundName TransDate FiscalYear RevenueActual JulAct AugAct SepAct OctAct NovAct DecAct JanAct FebAct MarAct AprAct MayAct JunAct

INDIAN WELLS VLY GRDWATER JPA 04/09/2018 1718 -48,239.79 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -48,239.79 0.00 0.00

INDIAN WELLS VLY GRDWATER JPA 05/18/2018 1718 22,734.08 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 22,734.08 0.00

INDIAN WELLS VLY GRDWATER JPA 07/01/2017 1718 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

INDIAN WELLS VLY GRDWATER JPA 05/15/2018 1718 63,381.84 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 63,381.84 0.00

INDIAN WELLS VLY GRDWATER JPA 05/18/2018 1718 159,892.41 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 159,892.41 0.00

INDIAN WELLS VLY GRDWATER JPA 01/17/2018 1718 100,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 100,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

INDIAN WELLS VLY GRDWATER JPA 07/01/2017 1718 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

INDIAN WELLS VLY GRDWATER JPA 03/23/2018 1718 66,241.27 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 66,241.27 0.00 0.00 0.00

INDIAN WELLS VLY GRDWATER JPA 05/18/2018 1718 1,039.20 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 1,039.20 0.00

INDIAN WELLS VLY GRDWATER JPA 03/15/2018 1718 9,818.25 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 9,818.25 0.00 0.00 0.00

INDIAN WELLS VLY GRDWATER JPA 01/17/2018 1718 -100,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -100,000.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

INDIAN WELLS VLY GRDWATER JPA 03/15/2018 1718 9,690.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 9,690.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

INDIAN WELLS VLY GRDWATER JPA 02/13/2018 1718 48,239.79 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 48,239.79 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

INDIAN WELLS VLY GRDWATER JPA 04/09/2018 1718 -66,241.27 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -66,241.27 0.00 0.00

INDIAN WELLS VLY GRDWATER JPA 05/18/2018 1718 -63,381.84 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 -63,381.84 0.00

203,173.94 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 48,239.79 85,749.52 -114,481.06 183,665.69 0.00

Revenue Report

((TransDate Greater Than Or Equal To Beginning of Fiscal Year) AND (TransDate Less Than Or Equal To Today) AND (FundNo Equals 42927))

1 / 1



  

1 

 

h       IWVGA ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE 
 

Memorandum 

 

    

 

TO:  IWVGA Board Members DATE: June 21, 2018       

 

FROM: Alan Christensen, IWVGA Staff 

  

SUBJECT: Search for Grant Funding to Assist IWVGA Activities 

 

DISCUSSION 

 

At the last IWVGA Board meeting, a handful of public speakers mentioned their desire to see the 

IWVGA pursue more grant opportunities to fund activities. 

 

The following thoughts should be considered by the Board and communicated clearly to the public, 

including members of the TAC and PAC: 

 

1. Grants have always been foremost on the minds of the IWVGA Staff.  We’ve pursued two 

major applications, both of which have been funded.  The Stressed Counties Grant (2017) 

was prepared by Kern County staff and consultants paid for by Kern County staff.  The 

Proposition 1 Grant application recently awarded to IWVGA by DWR was prepared by 

staff and Water Resources Manager after input from many parties and stakeholders in the 

basin.  Another grant obtained through DWR funded a facilitator (Dale Schafer).  Although 

that grant provided funding directly from DWR to pay Ms. Schafer’s bills, there was also 

a match required.  The match was that an agency pay the travel expenses of Ms. Schafer to 

be in Ridgecrest for regular meetings. Kern County paid those bills. 

 

2. County staff has researched and pursued grant opportunities.  In August 2017, I attend the 

CFCC Funding Fair in San Bernardino.  At that event, I found no grants that were relevant 

to the activities of the IWVGA, such as developing a GSP.  And virtually all the grants had 

a mandatory match.  Some of the grants required a cash contribution, while others would 

allow certain in-kind contributions or a combination of in-kind and cash.  The notice 

provided by a member of the public was a notice promoting the 2018 CFCC Funding Fair, 

which I plan to attend.  My attendance will be to mainly represent Kern County, but also 

to search for opportunities for the IWVGA.   

 

3. As mentioned previously, matching funds are usually required in order to be awarded a 

grant.  Some grants require a dollar percentage or in-kind match in order to be eligible for 

the grant. The Stressed Counties Grant has a match requirement, but because Kern County 

is a Disadvantage Community agency, the match was waived. The Proposition 1 Grant has 

a significant cash or in-kind match requirement. Most other grants I’ve researched do 

rcharlon
Typewritten Text
ITEM 5d



  

2 

 

mandate a match of some kind.  Grant match amounts can range from a limited fixed 

amount to 100% of the granted amount.   

 

 

4. A grant match definition can be broad.  Some grants require a cash match only.  So if a 

50% match is required for the grant and the grant is $100,000, then in this example a cash 

contribution of $50,000 is required.  In this example, the IWVGA would need to find a 

new or additional cash contribution to meet the match.  Also, note that it is typical rule that 

one governmental grant may not serve as match for another governmental grant.  Match 

funds are intended to bring new funds to the table, to show that the agency or grantee has 

sufficient “skin in the game,” and that they have financial capacity to use the grant 

effectively.  

 

5. It is likely that if a new grant were obtained and the grant allowed for reimbursement of 

Authority expenditures related to the GSP, then the new grant would NOT reduce or 

displace the estimated pump fees proposed by the IWVGA staff. That is because the new 

grant would not be able to displace planned expenditures related to the Proposition 1 Grant 

application.   

 

6. Most grants are very specific and “categorical” meaning they must be used for a certain 

purpose.  If obtained, they are generally not discretionary in that they cannot be used to 

fund any expense of the Authority. If the category or intended purpose of the grant is not 

related to the operating costs of the IWVGA, then that grant may or may not reduce the 

Authority’s bottom line.  Again, if a grant does not allow for reimbursement of Authority 

expenditures related to the GSP, then the grant would not impact or reduce the estimated 

pump fees proposed by the IWVGA staff. 

 

7. The other reality of obtaining grants is that many of them require significant reporting.  For 

instance, the staff time required to administer the Stressed Counties Grant, including   grant 

reimbursements and quarterly reports, is approximately 20-25 hours per month because of 

the mounds of documentation required by the Department of Water Resources.  I would 

expect similar time required to administer the Proposition 1 Grant.  A new grant would 

most certainly have administrative requirements and require staff hours to perform those 

tasks, although those tasks are unknown and would vary depending upon the grantor. Other 

costs to the agency would be the time and effort to develop a comprehensive grant 

application.  Such applications are often complex and time intensive.   
 

8. The IWVGA should consider who will perform grant administration tasks related to the 

Proposition 1 Grant. Stetson would most likely be involved, but their hourly rates are high. 

A lesser paid employee should be considered to administer the grant.  Furthermore, I 

recommend that for purposes of management control, proper fiscal oversight, and avoiding 

conflicts of interest, an employee of the IWVGA oversee Proposition 1 Grant 

administration.   

 

 



  

3 

 

 

 

CONCLUSION 

Grant funding is always worth pursuing; however, most grants are categorical in nature, in that, if 

successfully obtained, they must be used for very specific purposes. Usually there is not much 

discretion allowed to shift those funds for purposes other than what is identified specifically in the 

grant application documents.   

 

It is important, I believe, to avoid setting up unrealistic expectations of the many stakeholders in 

the IWV Groundwater Basin that might believe grant funding would easily obtained and could 

offset the proposed groundwater pumping fee being considered by the IWVGA Board. It is true 

that the IWVGA has been successful in obtaining grant funds, but the grants we obtained were not 

very competitive in nature.  Whereas, any future grant funds available in the groundwater area will 

no doubt be very competitive to obtain.   

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



AMENDMENT TO THE 

ADVANCED FUNDS AGREEMENT 
 

 

Whereas, the INDIAN WELLS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT (District) and the 

INDIAN WELLS VALLEY GROUNDWATER AUTHORITY (Authority) entered into an 

Advanced Funds Agreement on December 13, 2017, regarding the District’s advancement of 

funds to the Authority to allow work to continue on the Groundwater Sustainability Plan 

(Agreement). 

 

Whereas, Section 3 of the Agreement specifies the terms for reimbursement of said funds 

to the District. 

 

Whereas, Section 3(c) of the Agreement states that “[T]he Parties reserve the right to 

mutually agree upon different terms subject to the written approval of the Parties.” 

 

Whereas, the Parties now desire to clarify the terms for reimbursement of said funds to 

the District. 

 

The Parties, based upon mutual consideration, hereby agree as follows: 

 

1. Reimbursement and/or a credit of the $500,000 Advance from the District will be 

deferred until after GSP adoption and the District will seek reimbursement and/or credit 

from “future assessments, charges and/or fees imposed by the Authority” to fund the 

costs of groundwater management pursuant to SGMA. 

 

2. All other provisions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

3. This modification shall be effective immediately upon execution by the Parties. 

 

 

Dated this ____ day of June, 2018. 

 

 

INDIAN WELLS VALLEY INDIAN WELLS VALLEY  

WATER DISTRICT     GROUNDWATER AUTHORITY  

 

By:                                                         By:____________________________          

     Ron Kicinski, President         Peggy Breeden, Chairperson 

       Board of Directors                Board of Directors 

 

 

 
 

rcharlon
Typewritten Text
ITEM 7



AMENDMENT TO THE 

ADVANCED FUNDS AGREEMENT 
 

 

Whereas, the INDIAN WELLS VALLEY WATER DISTRICT (District) and the 

INDIAN WELLS VALLEY GROUNDWATER AUTHORITY (Authority) entered into an 

Advanced Funds Agreement on December 13, 2017, regarding the District’s advancement of 

funds to the Authority to allow work to continue on the Groundwater Sustainability Plan 

(Agreement). 

 

Whereas, Section 3 of the Agreement specifies the terms for reimbursement of said funds 

to the District. 

 

Whereas, Section 3(c) of the Agreement states that “[T]he Parties reserve the right to 

mutually agree upon different terms subject to the written approval of the Parties.” 

 

Whereas, the Parties now desire to clarify the terms for reimbursement of said funds to 

the District. 

 

The Parties, based upon mutual consideration, hereby agree as follows: 

 

1. Reimbursement and/or a credit of the $500,000 Advance from the District will be 

deferred and the District will seek reimbursement and/or credit from “future assessments, 

charges and/or fees imposed by the Authority” to fund the costs of groundwater 

management pursuant to SGMA. 

 

2. All other provisions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

3. This modification shall be effective immediately upon execution by the Parties. 

 

 

Dated this ____ day of June, 2018. 

 

 

INDIAN WELLS VALLEY INDIAN WELLS VALLEY  

WATER DISTRICT     GROUNDWATER AUTHORITY  

 

By:                                                         By:____________________________          

     Ron Kicinski, President         Peggy Breeden, Chairperson 

       Board of Directors                Board of Directors 

 

 

 
 









 
 

INDIAN WELLS VALLEY GROUNDWATER AUTHORITY 

 

Groundwater Extraction Fee 

Data Package 

City of Ridgecrest             Kern County                     Inyo County          San Bernardino County              Indian Wells Valley Water District 

 

 

 

Groundwater Extraction Fee 

Data Package

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REVISED  2018 18, June 

rcharlon
Typewritten Text
ITEM 8



 
 

INDIAN WELLS VALLEY GROUNDWATER AUTHORITY 

 

Groundwater Extraction Fee 

Data Package 

City of Ridgecrest             Kern County                     Inyo County          San Bernardino County              Indian Wells Valley Water District 

 

Groundwater Extraction Fee 

Data Package 
 

Contents 

Exhibit 1: IWVGA Staff Report 

Exhibit 2: Estimated Costs Required to be Funded by Groundwater Extraction Fee 

Exhibit 3: Determination of Fee  

Exhibit 4: Groundwater Sustainability Plan Schedule 

Exhibit 5: Methods to Quantify/Report Groundwater Production 

Exhibit 6: Listing of IWV Wells and Water Systems 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

INDIAN WELLS VALLEY GROUNDWATER AUTHORITY 

 

Groundwater Extraction Fee 

Data Package 

City of Ridgecrest             Kern County                     Inyo County          San Bernardino County              Indian Wells Valley Water District 

 

Exhibit 1: IWVGA Staff Report 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



1 

 

       IWVGA ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE 
 

Memorandum 

 

    

 

TO:  IWVGA Board Members DATE: June 21, 2018       

                    Revised June 18, 2018 

FROM: James Worth, IWVGA Staff 

  

SUBJECT: Groundwater Extraction Fees to Finance Development and Adoption of a 

Groundwater Sustainability Plan and IWVGA Administrative Costs 

 

SUSTAINABLE GROUNDWATER MANAGEMENT ACT 

 

The “Sustainable Groundwater Management Act” (“SGMA”) became effective January 1, 2015.  

In essence, SGMA requires local agencies with water supply, water management or land use 

responsibilities as well as federal governmental entities overlying a groundwater basin to form 

Groundwater Sustainable Agencies (“GSAs”) for the purpose of achieving groundwater 

sustainability through the adoption and implementation of Groundwater Sustainability Plans 

(“GSPs”) for the basin.  The IWV basin is designated as a high priority basin in critical overdraft 

and is required to prepare a Groundwater Sustainability Plan by January 2020.  

 

The Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Authority ("Authority") was formed and serves as the 

exclusive GSA for the IWV Basin.  Kern County, San Bernadino County, Inyo County, the City 

of Ridgecrest and the Indian Wells Valley Water District serve as voting members of the GSA.  

The Navy and the Bureau of Land Management are non-voting members of the GSA.  The GSA 

is presently developing the GSP required by SGMA to achieve groundwater sustainability.  A 

sustainable groundwater basin will benefit all water users, including but not limited to, 

eliminating and/or reducing an unreasonable lowering of groundwater levels and groundwater 

storage and water quality degradation. 

 

It should be noted that failure to adopt a GSP by January 31, 2020 may lead to the State Water 

Resources Control Board ("Board") designating the Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Basin 

("IWV Basin") as a probationary basin and authorizing the Board to adopt an interim plan 

including, but not limited to, identification of actions necessary to correct a condition of long-

term overdraft, restrictions on groundwater extractions and the allocation, administration and 

collection of fees. 

 

DISCUSSION 

 

On January 18, 2018, the Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Authority (“IWVGA”) Board 

of Directors (“Board”) directed IWVGA staff to develop a fee proposal to finance the 

development and adoption of a Groundwater Sustainability Plan (“GSP”).  The Board directed 

that the fee be based on volumetric usage of groundwater and be imposed on Groundwater 



2 

 

Extractors, with the exception of de minimis extractors.
1
 

 

At subsequent IWVGA board meetings, staff presented updated concepts of the 

extraction fee based on Board direction and public comment.  Following the March board 

meeting, a board workshop was held on April 5, 2018 to provide the public with the opportunity 

to address the Board on the proposed fee.  Following the Board workshop, staff continued to 

refine the extraction fee proposal to address comments made at the workshop.  The following is 

staff’s recommendation on how to implement the fee.  The elements of the proposed 

groundwater extraction fee identified by staff are as follows: 

 

Authority to Impose Fees: 

 

 Staff recommends the IWVGA Board adopt a fee pursuant to California Water Code 

Section 10730 (“Section 10730”), which was enacted through the California Sustainable 

Groundwater Management Act (“SGMA”).  Section 10730 grants a Groundwater Sustainability 

Agency (“GSA”) the authority to impose a groundwater extraction fee.  Section 10730(a) states 

in part as follows: 
 

(a) A groundwater sustainability agency may impose fees, including, but 

not limited to, permit fees and fees on groundwater extraction or other 

regulated activity, to fund the costs of a groundwater sustainability 

program, including, but not limited to, preparation, adoption, and 

amendment of a groundwater sustainability plan, and investigations, 

inspections, compliance assistance, enforcement, and program 

administration, including a prudent reserve. 
 

In addition, Water Code Section 10725(a) authorizes the IWVGA to “perform any act 

necessary or proper to carry out the purposes of this part [SGMA]. 
 

Public Engagement: 

 

Before imposing a fee, a GSA shall hold a public meeting, “at which oral or written 

presentations may be made” (Section 10730(b)).  The GSA must provide notice prior to the 

meeting, pursuant to California Government Code Section 6066, including the time and place of 

the public meeting, “a general explanation of the matter to be discussed and a statement that the 

data required by this section is available.”  Id.  At least 20 days prior to the meeting, the GSA 

“shall make available to the public data upon which the proposed fee is based.  Id.  After the 

public meeting, the fee shall be imposed or increased “only by ordinance or resolution.” 

 

Although Section 10730 only requires the IWVGA to hold a public meeting, a Board 

workshop was held on April 5, 2018.  In addition, the draft Data Package upon which the 

proposed fee is based was made available to the public on March 29, 2018 and notice of the 

workshop was posted on the IWVGA website (iwvga.org) and published in the Daily 

Independent.  Members of the Board, PAC, TAC and the public all provided comments on the 

                         

1  “De minimis extractor’ means a person who extracts, for domestic purposes, two acre-feet or less per year 

(California Water Code Section 10721(e)). 



3 

 

proposed fee at the workshop. 

 

An additional Informational Meeting was held on June 7, 2018 in Inyokern.  Notice of the 

Informational Meeting was published in the Daily Independent on three separate occasions 

between May 30, 2018 and June 5, 2018 and posted on the IWVGA website (iwvga.org).  Notice 

was also mailed to approximately 500 well owners advising of the Informational Meeting.  In 

total, the proposed extraction fee has been discussed at the February, March and May IWVGA 

Board meetings, the April 5 Board workshop and the June 7 Informational Meeting. 

An Informational Meeting was scheduled for June 7, 2018 in Inyokern.  The primary 

purpose of the meeting was to inform private well owners of SGMA and the need for the 

Extraction Fee.  Notice of the meeting was published in the Daily Independent and the News 

Review and posted on the IWVGA website (iwvga.org) and the City’s Facebook page.  Notice 

was also mailed to approximately 400 well owners advising of the Informational Meeting.  Well 

over 200 people attended the meeting.  As a result of the large number of public attendees, the 

Informational Meeting was cancelled due to a lack of available space at the Inyokern Senior 

Center.  Staff intends to re-notice and hold the Informational Meeting on a date to be determined. 

 

Exempted Pumpers: 

 

While the Board’s approved motion to develop a fee proposal did not identify federal 

groundwater extractions, United States Navy (“Navy”) and United States Department of Interior 

Bureau of Land Management (“BLM”) pumping should be excluded.  SGMA exempts federal 

agencies from the requirements of SGMA and prohibits the imposition of fees on de minimis 

extractors unless regulated pursuant to SGMA.2 

 

Gap Funding Requirement: 

 

 As the extraction fee proposal has been refined, budget items and amounts considered 

when calculating the needed gap funding have been adjusted and/or added.  The following 

provides an overview of the items included in the budget and the rationale for adjusting the 

amounts after the Board workshop. 

 

 Expenditures:  As the GSA for the Indian Wells Valley Basin, the IWVGA is required to 

adopt a GSP by no later than January 31, 2020. The IWVGA Water Resources Manager 

(“WRM”) has estimated that the total cost of developing and adopting the GSP to be about $3.1 

million. Additionally, as part of the Proposition 1 grant funding request, the WRM identified 

$646,000 in costs for initial projects benefitting Severely Disadvantaged Communities 

(“SDAC”).  $87,600 has been added to account for the cost of the USGS Recharge Study.  The 

WRM has identified an additional $435,250 in estimated costs for the WRM’s support of the 

IWVGA.  IWVGA Administrative Costs of $161,500 are included to fund the hiring of a part-

time General Manager for the GSA.  The City of Ridgecrest has or expects to provide $210,466 

in services and facilities which are referred to as Reimbursable Costs.  Legal Costs which were 

estimated at $350,000 have been reduced to $200,000 to account for the fact that much of legal 

                         

2 For purposes of this Proposal, any reference to groundwater pumpers excludes de minimis extractors, the Navy 

and BLM unless otherwise specified. 



4 

 

work will continue to be provided as in-kind services by General Members of the GSA.  The 

remaining $200,000 is estimated legal costs to be incurred by IWVGA Special Counsel (James 

Markman) for work on GSP development and an expected validation action.  Finally, the 20% 

reserve in the amount of $939,070 has been reduced to $222,138$227,268 which is 5% of the 

total GSP Development and SDAC Costs ($3,646,000$3,748,600), IWVGA Support Costs 

($435,250), IWVGA Administrative Costs ($161,500) and Legal Costs ($200,000).  Total 

Expenditures have been reduced from $5,844,886 to $4,962,954$5,070,684 resulting in 

$881,932774,202 less estimated expenditures.  

 

  Revenue:  On April 4, 2018, the California Department of Water Resources (“DWR”) 

announced its final award for the Proposition 1 Grant funding, awarding the IWVGA the full 

Proposition 1 grant award of $2,146,000 -- $1.5 million for development of the GSP and 

$646,000 for SDAC projects.  While the local match requirement for the SDAC projects grant 

award may be waived, the GSP development grant award requires a $1.5-million local match.  It 

is estimated more than two-thirds ($1,061,200$1,157,300) of the local match requirement can be 

achieved with in-kind services and existing investments by parties in the Basin.  ThreeTwo 

budget items have been added under Revenue to reflect all monies received or expected to be 

received by the IWVGA to fund development of the GSA.  The Initial General Member Agency 

Contribution of $75,000 reflects the $15,000 provided by each of the 5 General Members 

pursuant to the Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement creating the IWVGA (Section 9.02).  The 

$500,000 Advance from the Indian Wells Valley Water District (“IWVWD”) is also included.  

On June 11, 2018, the IWVWD Board voted unanimously to defer reimbursement of the 

$500,000 and seek reimbursement and/or credit from “future assessments, charges and/or fees 

imposed by the Authority” to fund the costs of groundwater management pursuant to SGMA.  

Finally, tThe Proposition 1 Distressed Counties Grant has also been added.  The Proposition 1 

Distressed Counties Grant total is $250,000 which includes reimbursement for the USGS 

Recharge Study and other GSP support costs.For accounting purposes, the total Proposition 1 

Distressed Counties Grant revenue has been reduced by $80,000 as some GSP support costs are 

already accounted for in the Proposition 1 Grant award.  These additional Revenue 

adjustmentsitems total $728,900245,000 thereby increasing estimated Revenue from $3,303,300 

to $3,548,3004,032,200. 

 

 The following table summarizes all of these estimated financial impacts resulting in a 

total estimated gap funding requirement of $930,754$1,522,384 which the proposed pumping fee 

would address. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



5 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Budget Items Estimated Costs 

EXPENDITURES  

GSP Development and SDAC Costs (Prop 1) $3,646,000$3,748,600 

GSP Preparation $3,000,000$3,102,600 

Water Conservation and Rebate Program $206,000 

Water Audit, Leak Detection, & Leak Repair Program $440,000 

USGS Recharge Study $87,600 

IWVGA Support Costs $435,250 

IWVGA/TAC/PAC Coordination $144,250 

Prop 1 Application/Reporting $103,000 

Schedule/Budget Management $52,000 

Groundwater Pumping Assessment Support $121,500 

Database Management Coordination $10,000 

CASGEM Coordination $4,500 

IWVGA Administrative Costs $161,500 

GSA Board Meetings $42,000 

Consultant Management and GSP Development $24,500 

Financial Management $8,500 

Community Outreach $21,000 

Budget Development & Administration $12,500 

PAC/TAC Meetings $19,000 

Travel  $6,000 

Insurance $15,000 

Conferences/Training $3,000 

Miscellaneous $10,000 

City of Ridgecrest Reimbursable Costs $210,466 

Legal Costs $200,000 

Reserve $222,138$227,268 

Total Expenditures $4,962,954$5,070,684 

  

REVENUE  

Proposition 1 Grant Award $2,146,000 

GSP Preparation $1,500,000 

Water Conservation and Rebate Program $206,000 

Water Audit, Leak Detection, & Leak Repair Program $440,000 



6 

 

In-kind Services $1,061,200$1,157,300 

U.S. Navy/Federal Services $1,001,200$1,097,300 

IWVWD Services $60,000 

Initial General Member Agency Contribution $75,000 

IWVWD Advance $500,000 

Proposition 1 Distressed Counties Grant $250,000$170,000 

Total Revenue $4,032,200$3,548,300 

TOTAL GAP FUNDING REQUIRED $930,754$1,522,384 

  
 

 

Calculation of Fees: 

 

 As previously directed by the Board, the standard volumetric fee would be imposed on 

each Groundwater Extractor pumping groundwater and would be based on the amount of 

groundwater pumped.  Groundwater Extraction Fees would be imposed based on the amount of 

groundwater pumped in relation to the funds required to develop and adopt the GSP and the 

additional IWVGA expenditures identified above.  The initial calculation of a per acre-feet 

(“AF”) fee would be based on existing estimates of the aggregate annual groundwater extractions 

by Groundwater Extractors.  Estimated groundwater pumping for 2016 is 21,600 AF, as reported 

to the Indian Wells Valley Cooperative Groundwater Management Group.  

 

 For example, estimated groundwater pumping for 2016 is 21,600 AF, as reported to the 

Indian Wells Valley Cooperative Groundwater Management Group.  A Groundwater Extraction 

Fee of $35 per AF would generate $756,000 per year and the required Gap Funding of 

$1,522,384 would be met in approximately 24 months.  See Exhibit 3 of the Data Package, 

Determination of Fee.  A further noticed public meeting pursuant to Section 10730 would be 

required to increase the amount of the fee if the Gap Funding requirement increased. 

 Staff recently recommended a Groundwater Extraction Fee of $35 per AF which would 

generate $756,000 per year and the expected required Gap Funding of $1,522,384 would be met 

in approximately 24 months.  However, with the IWVWD’s agreement to defer reimbursement 

of the $500,000 until after GSP adoption, the Board has multiple options to consider when 

calculating the fee.  (1) Keep the Extraction Fee at $35 per AF and terminate the Extraction Fee 

when the required Gap Funding of $930,754 is met; or (2) Reduce the Extraction Fee to $25 per 

AF and the required Gap Funding of $930,754 should be met in approximately 21 months.  

Alternate options may be explored if that is the Board’s desire. See Exhibit 3 of the Data 

Package, Determination of Fee.  A further noticed public meeting pursuant to Section 10730 

would be required to increase the amount of the fee if the Gap Funding requirement increased. 

 

Groundwater Extractors Identification and Well Registration: 

 

 Existing Groundwater Extractors who would be charged the proposed fee are being 

identified using county records and other available public documents.  A list of the Groundwater 

Extractors subject to the proposed fee is included in Exhibit 6 of the Data Package, IWV Wells 

and Systems which continues to be updated and verified.  Once the fee is adopted, all 

Groundwater Extraction Facilities within the boundaries of the Indian Wells Valley Groundwater 



7 

 

Basin (“Basin”) must be registered with the IWVGA by the owner or operator no later than 

August 20, 2018July 23, 2018.  Exception:  Groundwater Extraction Facilities that are used 

solely by a De Minimis Extractor (less than 2 acre-feet per year for domestic purposes) must 

register with the IWVGA no later than October 1, 2018.  Requiring well registration will help 

ensure that accurate data is maintained and well owners only pay their fair share of the 

Extraction Fee, and no more. 

 

 Failure to Register:  Groundwater Extraction Facilities are prohibited from pumping 

groundwater if they are not registered by the applicable date above and said prohibition shall 

continue until the Groundwater Extraction Facility is registered with the IWVGA. 

 

  Groundwater Extraction Facilities constructed after August 20, 2018July 23, 2018 must 

register and must receive registration approval from the Water Resources Manager and must 

comply with the all applicable rules and regulations of the Groundwater Extraction Fee prior to 

the extraction of any groundwater from the Basin. 

 

 

Groundwater Extraction Measurement Method: 

 

 Effective September 1, 2018August 1, 2018, all groundwater extractions from, and 

within, the boundaries of the Basin shall be measured in a method approved by the Water 

Resources Manager and reported to the IWVGA.  In light of this, the IWVGA, through the 

WRM, has developed criteria and a procedure for measuring extractions.  Exhibit 5 of the Data 

Package, Methods to Quantify/Report Groundwater Production, includes a memorandum on 

Methods to Quantify/Report Groundwater Production prepared by the WRM with assistance 

from the TAC. 

 

 Groundwater Extractors shall seek the Water Resources Manager’s method approval 

through the submission of an Authority approved form by no later than August 20, 2018July 10, 

2018.  The Water Resources Manager shall review all method requests and return, with 

corrective comment, any that do not meet the Water Resources Manager’s approval.  Approved 

method requests shall receive an approval notice from the Water Resources Manager.  A 

Groundwater Extraction Facility may not extract any groundwater from the Basin until it has 

received a method approval notice from the Water Resources Manager. 

 

 The preferred method for measuring groundwater extractions shall be through a flow 

metering device approved by the Water Resources Manager.
 3

  A secondary method shall be 

through use of electrical records and pump efficiency data.  If the above options are not available 

the Groundwater Extractor must seek and receive approval from the Water Resources Manager 

of an alternative method prior to September 1, 2018August 1, 2018. 

 

Groundwater Extraction Reporting and Fee Payment.   

                         

3 The Indian Wells Valley Water District and Searles Valley Minerals have meters installed on their wells.  It is not 

presently known how many of the other Groundwater Extraction Facilities have meters. 



8 

 

Commencing on September 1, 2018August 1, 2018 and continuing, on the first day of 

each subsequent month, Groundwater Extractors shall read and record the needed data for the 

measuring method used by the Groundwater Extraction Facility.  By the 10
th

 day of each 

calendar month, the Groundwater Extractor shall self-report the needed data from their 

Groundwater Extraction Facility on the self-reporting form provided by the IWVGA.  

Additionally, the Groundwater Extractor shall simultaneously pay the Groundwater Extraction 

Fee provided for on the Form.  Payments would be made to the IWVGA.  Payments not made 

with thirty (30) days of becoming due would be considered delinquent. 

If unusual circumstances exist, a Groundwater Extractor may request that their 

Groundwater Extraction Facility be placed on a modified reporting and billing schedule 

approved by both the IWVGA’s General Manager and the Water Resources Manager. 

Delinquent Accounts: 

 

 Water Code Section 10730.6 of SGMA authorizes the IWVGA to collect groundwater 

fees imposed pursuant to Section 10730 and provides multiple remedies that the IWVGA may 

pursue to collect delinquent accounts.  As prescribed by California Water Code section 10730.6, 

if the owner and/or operator of a Groundwater Extraction Facility knowingly fails to pay the 

Groundwater Extraction Fee within thirty (30) days of it becoming due, it is delinquent and the 

owner and/or operator shall be liable to the IWVGA for interest at a rate of one (1) percent per 

month on the delinquent amount of the Groundwater Extraction Fee and a ten (10) percent 

penalty on the delinquent amount of the Groundwater Extraction Fee. 

 

 As an additional remedy, the IWVGA may, after a public hearing, order an owner and/or 

operator to cease extraction of groundwater until all delinquent fees, interests and penalties are 

paid.  In such an instance, the IWVGA shall give notice to the owner and/or operator by certified 

mail not less than 15 days in advance of the public hearing. 

 

 These above cited rights are additional rights to those rights which the IWVGA may 

otherwise be prescribed by law. 

 

Recommended Board Action:   

 

Staff recommends that the Board: 

 

1. Adopt Ordinance No. 02-18 -– Establishing Groundwater Extraction Fees and the Rules, 

Regulations and Procedures for their ImpositionEstablishing the Rules, Regulations and 

Procedures for the Imposition and Collection of Groundwater Extractions Fees. 

2. Adopt Resolution No. 03-18 – Resolution Establishing procedures for and 

Adopting a Groundwater Extraction Fee 

3.2.Authorize staff to do all things necessary to implement the Groundwater Extraction Fee. 
 



 
 

INDIAN WELLS VALLEY GROUNDWATER AUTHORITY 

 

Groundwater Extraction Fee 

Data Package 

City of Ridgecrest             Kern County                     Inyo County          San Bernardino County              Indian Wells Valley Water District 

 

Exhibit 2: Estimated Costs Required to be Funded by 

Groundwater Extraction Fee 

 

Supporting Attachments 

• Prop 1 Application Budget Tables 

• IWVGA Support Costs 

• City of Ridgecrest Reimbursable Costs Budget Breakdown 

• Final Prop 1 Funding Recommendations  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Authority

Budget Items Estimated Costs

Expenditures

GSP Development and SDAC Costs (Prop 1) $3,646,000 

GSP Preparation ¹┘ $3,000,000 
Water Conservation and Rebate Program ¹┘²┘ $206,000 
Water Audit, Leak Detection, and Leak Repair Program ¹┘²┘ $440,000 

USGS Recharge Study $87,600 

IWVGA Support Costs  ³┘ $435,250 

IWVGA/TAC/PAC Coordination $144,250 

Prop 1 Application/Reporting $103,000 

Schedule/Budget Management $52,000 

Groundwater Pumping Fee Support $121,500 

Database Management Coordination $10,000 

CASGEM Coordination $4,500 

IWVGA Administrative Costs $161,500 

GSA Board Meetings $42,000

Consultant Management and GSP Development $24,500

Financial Management $8,500

Community Outreach $21,000

Budget Development & Admin $12,500

PAC/TAC Meetings $19,000

Travel $6,000

Insurance $15,000

Conferences/Training $3,000

Miscellaneous $10,000
City of Ridgecrest Reimbursable Costs ⁴┘ $210,466 
Legal Costs ⁵┘ $200,000 
Reserve ⁶┘ $222,138 

Total Expenditures $4,962,954 

Revenue

Proposition 1 GSP Grant Award ¹┘⁷┘ $2,146,000 

GSP Preparation $1,500,000 

Water Conservation and Rebate Program $206,000 

Water Audit, Leak Detection, and Leak Repair Program $440,000 

In-kind Services $1,061,200 

U.S Navy/Searles Valley Minerals/Federal Services ¹┘⁸┘ $1,001,200 
IWVWD/City of Ridgecrest Services ¹┘ ⁹┘ $60,000 

Member Agency Contributions $75,000 

IWVWD Advance ¹⁰┘ $500,000 
Proposition 1 Distressed Counties Grant ¹¹┘ $250,000 

Total Revenue $4,032,200 

Estimated Costs Required to be Funded by Groundwater Pumping Fee 



Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Authority

TOTAL GAP FUNDING REQUIRED $930,754

Notes 

11] The Prop 1 Distressed Counties Grant total includes reimbursement for the USGS Recharge Study and 

other GSP support costs. 

3] Additional IWVGA support costs not eligible for Prop 1 Grant. See Exhibit 2 supporting attachments for 

description of costs. 

2] The Water Conservation and Rebate Program ($206,000) and Water Audit, Leak Detection, and Leak Repair 

Program ($440,000) together are collectively referred to as the SDAC Groundwater Conservation Pilot Project 

for a total of $646,000.

9] IWVWD/Ridgecrest services include development of the Salt and Nutrient Management Plan. 

1] From Resubmitted Prop 1 Grant Application. See Exhibit 2 supporting attachments for budget tables from 

Prop 1 Grant Application. 

4] Reimbursable costs include legal, IT support, and building usage costs. See Exhibit 2 supporting 

attachments for description of costs. 

5] Legal costs anticipated to be incurred by IWVGA Special Counsel for work on GSP development and an 

anticipated validation action. 

6] Reserve is 5% of the total of GSP Development and SDAC Costs ($3,646,000), IWVGA Support Costs 

($435,250), IWVGA Administrative Costs ($161,500), and Legal Costs ($200,000). 

8] Federal services include numerical modeling and monitoring well installation. 

7] Grant award amounts are consistent with DWR's Prop 1 Final Funding Recommendations. See Exhibit 2 

supporting attachments. 

10] The IWVWD Board has voted to defer reimbursement of the $500,000 and seek reimbursement and/or 

credit from “future assessments, charges and/or fees imposed by the Authority” to fund the costs of 

groundwater management pursuant to SGMA.  



(c) (d) (e)

Other Cost 

Share
Total Cost % Cost Share

1 $0 $3,000,000 50%

$0 $3,000,000 50%

Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Basin - Groundwater 

Sustainability Plan Development
1 $1,500,000

Table 5 - Proposal Budget

Individual Project Title Requested 

Grant Amount

Cost Share: Non-

State Fund 

$1,500,000

(a) (b)

Proposal Title: Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Basin - Groundwater Sustainability Plan Development and SDAC Groundwater 

Conservation Pilot Project

1. Sources of funding from the IWVGA (including Kern County, Inyo County, San Bernardino County, Indian Wells Valley Water District, and City of Ridgecrest), 

Searles Valley Minerals, Bureau of Land Management, and from the U.S. Navy. A breakdown of funding sources is provided in Table 4.

$1,500,000 $1,500,000Proposal Total

�� Excerpt ��Application 1  PropResubmitted from 



Project serves a need of a DAC?:

Cost Share Waiver Request?:

(c) (d)

 Other Cost Share  Total Cost 

1 $710,793 $0 $1,015,000

$7,043 1 $0 $30,800

$83,150 1 $0 $363,600

$620,600 2 $0 $620,600

2 $60,000 3 $0 $80,000

$30,000 $0 $30,000

$30,000 $0 $30,000

$0 $0 $20,000

Objective 1

Task 1 - Model Development $304,207

Table 4 - Project Budget

Proposal Title: Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Basin - Groundwater Sustainability Plan Development and SDAC Groundwater Conservation 

Pilot Project

Project Title: Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Basin - Groundwater Sustainability Plan Development

Tasks

(a) (b)

 Requested Grant 

Amount 

 Cost Share: Non-State 

Fund Source 

Task 2a - Loading Analysis (Existing) $0

Task 2b - Mixing Model Development (Existing) $0

Task 2c - Reporting and Coordination

Task 1a - Hydrogeologic Conceptual Model $23,756.51

Task 1b - Numerical Groundwater Model

(Basin Model Updates, Sustainable Management Scenarios, Transport Modeling, 

Land Subsidence Evaluation, Safe Yield Review)

$280,450.28

Previous and Ongoing Model Development In-Kind Services $0

$20,000

Task 2 - Salt and Nutrient Management Plan Development $20,000

Yes

NoYes

No

Excerpt  Application 1 Prop Resubmitted from 



(c) (d)

 Other Cost Share  Total Cost 
Tasks

(a) (b)

 Requested Grant 

Amount 

 Cost Share: Non-State 

Fund Source 

3 $70,595 1 $0 $308,700

$7,066 $0 $30,900

$12,395 $0 $54,200

$41,095 $0 $179,700

$10,039 $0 $43,900

4 $15,253 1 $0 $66,700

$9,696 $0 $42,400

$5,557 $0 $24,300

5 $418,882 $0 $548,000

$3,133 1 $0 $13,700

$373,400 4 $0 $373,400

$22,617 1 $0 $98,900

$7,200 4 $0 $7,200

$12,532 1 $0 $54,800

Objective 2

Task 3 - Data Management System $238,105

Task 4 - Identify and Evaluate Hydrogeologic Data Gaps $51,447

Task 4a - Review Existing Model and Monitoring Network $32,703.77

Task 3a - Establish Monitoring Protocols and Reporting Standards $23,833.65

Task 3b- Populate Database with Historical Data $41,805.29

Task 4b - Identification and Prioritization of Data Gaps $18,742.96

Task 5 - Monitoring Wells $129,118

Task 3c - Install Transducers and Telemetry Equipment $138,605.38

Task 3d - Integrate GSP Goals and Objectives - Adaptive Management $33,860.75

Task 5a - Design and Location Siting $10,567.02

Task 5b - Work Plan and Well Construction

$0

$76,283.09

Task 5c - Collection of Monitoring Well Data

$0

$42,268.08



(c) (d)

 Other Cost Share  Total Cost 
Tasks

(a) (b)

 Requested Grant 

Amount 

 Cost Share: Non-State 

Fund Source 

6 $20,993 1 $0 $91,800

$3,682 $0 $16,100

$6,838 $0 $29,900

$10,474 $0 $45,800

7 $15,642 1 $0 $68,400

$3,728 $0 $16,300

$6,723 $0 $29,400

$5,191 $0 $22,700

8 $24,858 1 $0 $108,700

$18,638 $0 $81,500

$6,220 $0 $27,200

9 $39,402 1 $0 $172,300

$8,256 $0 $36,100

$31,147 $0 $136,200

Task 6 - Stream Gages $70,807

Task 6a - Hydrologic Analysis $12,418.18

Task 7 - Weather Stations $52,758

Task 7a - Design and Location Siting $12,572.44

Task 7b - Equipment Purchase $22,676.67

Task 6b - Design and Location Siting $23,062.33

Task 6c - Equipment Purchase, Installation, and Testing $35,326.25

Task 8a - Surface and Groundwater Sampling $62,862.21

Task 8b - Perform Geochemical Reaction and Transport Analysis $20,979.78

Task 7c - Installation and Testing $17,508.86

Task 8 - Water Quality and Stable Isotope Sampling and Analysis $83,842

Task 9 - Aquifer Tests $132,898

Task 9a - Prepare Aquifer Test Work Plan $27,844.49

Task 9b - Perform Aquifer Testing $105,053.16



(c) (d)

 Other Cost Share  Total Cost 
Tasks

(a) (b)

 Requested Grant 

Amount 

 Cost Share: Non-State 

Fund Source 

10 $40,020 1 $0 $175,000

$17,151 $0 $75,000

$5,717 $0 $25,000

$5,717 $0 $25,000

$11,434 $0 $50,000

11 $13,950 1 $0 $61,000

$1,509 $0 $6,600

$1,372 $0 $6,000

$778 $0 $3,400

$4,574 $0 $20,000

$5,717 $0 $25,000

Objective 3

Task 10c - Evaluate Infrastructure Requirements $19,282.89

Task 10d - Prepare Technical Memorandum $38,565.77

Task 11 - Recycled Water Study $47,050

Task 10 - Alternative Water/Conservation Study $134,980

Task 10a - Evaluate Alternative Water Sources and Conservation $57,848.66

Task 10b - Evaluate Water Banking Alternatives and Extraction Schedule $19,282.89

Task 11d - Identify and Evaluate Potential Recycled Water Users $15,426.31

Task 11e - Prepare Technical Memorandum $19,282.89

Task 11a - Existing Supply and Demand Analysis $5,090.68

Task 11b - Identify Existing Recycled Water Infrastructure and Users $4,627.89

Task 11c - Review Regulatory and Institutional Requirements $2,622.47



(c) (d)

 Other Cost Share  Total Cost 
Tasks

(a) (b)

 Requested Grant 

Amount 

 Cost Share: Non-State 

Fund Source 

12 $69,612 1 $0 $304,400

$206 $0 $900

$274 $0 $1,200

$3,705 $0 $16,200

$6,861 $0 $30,000

$11,434 $0 $50,000

$8,004 $0 $35,000

$457 $0 $2,000

$7,158 $0 $31,300

$17,106 $0 $74,800

$14,407 $0 $63,000

$0 $3,000,000

Notes

4. Funding Source: US Navy, Bureau of Land Management, and Searles Valley Minerals

Task 12a - Prepare Executive Summary Chapter $694.18

Task 12b - Prepare Introduction Chapter $925.58

Task 12c -Prepare Plan Area and Basin Setting Chapter $12,495.31

Objective 4

Task 12 - GSP Development and Compilation $234,788

Task 12g- Prepare References and Technical Studies Chapter $1,542.63

Task 12h - Develop Draft and Final GSP $24,142.17

Task 12i - Project Management $57,694.39

Task 12d - Prepare Sustainable Management Criteria Chapter $23,139.46

Task 12e - Prepare Projects and Management Actions to Achieve Sustainability 

Goal Chapter
$38,565.77

Task 12f - Prepare Plan Implementation Chapter $26,996.04

2. Funding Source: US Navy

3. Funding Source: City of Ridgecrest and IWVWD

Task 12j - Stakeholder/DWR Coordination $48,592.87

Grand Total (Tasks 1-12) $1,500,000 $1,500,000

1. Funding Source: IWVGA



Ex
p

en
d

it
u

re
D

es
cr

ip
ti

o
n

To
ta

l C
o

st
s 

(A
u

g 
2

0
1

7
 -

  

Ja
n

 2
0

2
0

)

TO
TA

L
$

4
3

5
,2

5
0

[1
] 

A
ss

u
m

es
 P

ro
p

 1
 A

d
m

in
 S

u
p

p
o

rt
 b

eg
in

s 
Ju

n
e 

2
0

1
8

.

[2
] 

A
ss

u
m

es
 G

ro
u

n
d

w
at

er
 E

xt
ra

ct
io

n
 F

ee
s 

ad
m

in
is

te
re

d
 f

o
r 

2
4

 m
o

n
th

s.
 

IW
V

G
A

 S
u

p
p

o
rt

 C
o

st
s

$
4

,5
0

0
C

A
SG

EM
 C

o
o

rd
in

at
io

n

G
ro

u
n

d
w

at
er

 E
xt

ra
ct

io
n

 F
ee

 

Su
p

p
o

rt
 [

2
]

D
at

ab
as

e 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 

C
o

o
rd

in
at

io
n

$
1

2
1

,5
0

0

$
1

0
,0

0
0

A
ss

is
t 

IW
V

G
A

 w
it

h
 p

ro
ce

ss
in

g 
m

o
n

th
ly

 f
e

es
 in

cl
u

d
in

g 
e

st
im

at
in

g 

p
u

m
p

in
g 

fr
o

m
 n

o
n

-m
et

er
ed

 w
el

ls
. 

C
o

o
rd

in
at

io
n

 w
it

h
 R

am
b

o
ll 

an
d

 IW
V

W
D

 r
e

ga
rd

in
g 

d
at

ab
as

e 

m
an

ag
em

en
t 

d
ev

el
o

p
m

en
t.

 

C
o

o
rd

in
at

io
n

 w
it

h
 D

W
R

, K
e

rn
 C

o
u

n
ty

 W
at

e
r 

A
ge

n
cy

, a
n

d
 IW

V
G

A
 

to
 t

ra
n

sf
er

 C
A

SG
EM

 r
e

sp
o

n
si

b
ili

ti
es

 t
o

 IW
V

G
A

. 

$
1

4
4

,2
5

0

$
1

0
3

,0
0

0

$
5

2
,0

0
0

IW
V

G
A

/T
A

C
/P

A
C

 C
o

o
rd

in
at

io
n

P
ro

p
 1

 A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
 /

 R
e

p
o

rt
in

g 
[1

]

Sc
h

ed
u

le
/B

u
d

ge
t 

M
an

ag
em

en
t

A
d

d
it

io
n

al
 P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
co

st
s 

to
 d

ev
el

o
p

 a
n

d
 m

ai
n

ta
in

 a
 

M
ic

ro
so

ft
 P

ro
je

ct
 s

ch
ed

u
le

 w
it

h
 b

u
d

ge
t 

tr
ac

ki
n

g 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

th
e 

N
av

y'
s 

P
la

n
 o

f 
A

ct
io

n
 a

n
d

 M
ile

st
o

n
e 

(P
O

A
M

) 
fo

rm
at

 . 

C
o

st
s 

to
 P

re
p

ar
e 

th
e 

P
ro

p
 1

 G
ra

n
t 

A
p

p
lic

at
io

n
, C

o
o

rd
in

at
io

n
 

w
it

h
 D

W
R

, a
n

d
 P

ro
p

 1
 G

ra
n

t 
A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

io
n

 (
in

vo
ic

e 
p

ro
ce

ss
in

g,
 

re
p

o
rt

in
g,

 e
tc

.)

A
d

d
it

io
n

al
 C

o
st

s 
fo

r 
co

o
rd

in
at

io
n

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

IW
V

G
A

, T
A

C
, a

n
d

 P
A

C
 

n
o

t 
in

cl
u

d
ed

 d
ir

ec
tl

y 
as

so
ci

at
ed

 w
it

h
 t

h
e 

P
ro

p
 1

 G
ra

n
t 

co
st

s 

(m
ee

ti
n

g 
p

re
p

ar
at

io
n

, c
o

o
rd

in
at

io
n

 c
al

ls
, m

ee
ti

n
gs

, e
tc

.)



Ci
ty

 o
f R

id
ge

cr
es

t R
ei

m
bu

rs
ab

le
 C

os
ts

 - 
Bu

dg
et

 B
re

ak
do

w
n

At
to

rn
ey

 F
ee

s
20

16
20

17
20

18
20

19
Ch

am
be

r h
ou

rs
20

16
20

17
20

18
20

19
IT

 S
up

po
rt

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

Ja
n.

8,
84

2.
50

$ 
   

   
   

6,
50

0.
00

$ 
   

   
4,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
Ja

n.
4

3
3

Ja
n.

27
0.

00
$ 

   
  

25
0.

00
$ 

   
  

25
0.

00
$ 

   
  

Fe
b

4,
86

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

6,
50

0.
00

$ 
   

   
4,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
Fe

b
3.

5
3

3
Fe

b
24

0.
00

$ 
   

  
25

0.
00

$ 
   

  
25

0.
00

$ 
   

  
M

ar
7,

32
1.

49
$ 

   
   

   
6,

50
0.

00
$ 

   
   

4,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

M
ar

3
3

3
M

ar
21

0.
00

$ 
   

  
25

0.
00

$ 
   

  
25

0.
00

$ 
   

  
Ap

ril
5,

76
7.

50
$ 

   
   

   
6,

50
0.

00
$ 

   
   

4,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

Ap
ril

3
3

3
Ap

ril
21

0.
00

$ 
   

  
25

0.
00

$ 
   

  
25

0.
00

$ 
   

  
M

ay
2,

09
7.

30
$ 

   
   

   
6,

50
0.

00
$ 

   
   

4,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

M
ay

3
3

3
M

ay
21

0.
00

$ 
   

  
25

0.
00

$ 
   

  
25

0.
00

$ 
   

  
Ju

ne
63

0.
00

$ 
   

   
   

   
6,

50
0.

00
$ 

   
   

4,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

Ju
ne

7
3

3
Ju

ne
45

0.
00

$ 
   

  
25

0.
00

$ 
   

  
25

0.
00

$ 
   

  
Ju

ly
5,

30
8.

00
$ 

   
   

   
6,

50
0.

00
$ 

   
   

4,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

Ju
ly

2.
5

3
3

Ju
ly

18
0.

00
$ 

   
  

25
0.

00
$ 

   
  

25
0.

00
$ 

   
  

Au
gu

st
2,

58
7.

50
$ 

   
   

2,
30

4.
49

$ 
   

   
   

6,
50

0.
00

$ 
   

   
4,

00
0.

00
$ 

   
   

  
Au

gu
st

2
2

3
3

Au
gu

st
15

0.
00

$ 
   

  
15

0.
00

$ 
   

  
25

0.
00

$ 
   

  
25

0.
00

$ 
   

  
Se

pt
.

2,
45

2.
50

$ 
   

   
2,

55
1.

87
$ 

   
   

   
6,

50
0.

00
$ 

   
   

4,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

Se
pt

.
3.

5
3

3
3

Se
pt

.
24

0.
00

$ 
   

  
21

0.
00

$ 
   

  
25

0.
00

$ 
   

  
25

0.
00

$ 
   

  
O

ct
.

2,
38

5.
00

$ 
   

   
3,

21
7.

50
$ 

   
   

   
6,

50
0.

00
$ 

   
   

4,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

O
ct

.
2

2.
5

3
3

O
ct

.
15

0.
00

$ 
   

  
18

0.
00

$ 
   

  
25

0.
00

$ 
   

  
25

0.
00

$ 
   

  
N

ov
.

8,
85

7.
78

$ 
   

   
3,

03
7.

50
$ 

   
   

   
6,

50
0.

00
$ 

   
   

4,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

N
ov

.
2.

5
4

3
3

N
ov

.
18

0.
00

$ 
   

  
27

0.
00

$ 
   

  
25

0.
00

$ 
   

  
25

0.
00

$ 
   

  
D

ec
.

4,
97

7.
50

$ 
   

   
2,

67
7.

50
$ 

   
   

   
6,

50
0.

00
$ 

   
   

4,
00

0.
00

$ 
   

   
  

D
ec

.
2.

5
2

3
3

D
ec

.
18

0.
00

$ 
   

  
15

0.
00

$ 
   

  
25

0.
00

$ 
   

  
25

0.
00

$ 
   

  
21

,2
60

.2
8

$ 
   

 
48

,6
15

.6
5

$ 
   

   
78

,0
00

.0
0

$ 
   

48
,0

00
.0

0
$ 

   
   

12
.5

39
.5

36
36

90
0.

00
$ 

   
  

2,
73

0.
00

$ 
 

3,
00

0.
00

$ 
 

3,
00

0.
00

$ 
 

To
ta

l A
tt

or
ne

y 
Co

st
s

19
5,

87
5.

93
$ 

   
 

To
ta

l C
ha

m
be

r h
ou

rs
12

4
Co

un
ci

l C
ha

m
be

r I
T 

se
rv

ic
es

 in
cl

ud
e:

 X
 $

40
/h

ou
r

40
.0

0
$ 

   
   

   
Au

di
o 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
an

d 
le

ve
lin

g
To

ta
l C

ha
m

be
r c

os
ts

4,
96

0.
00

$ 
   

 
Br

oa
dc

as
tin

g 
to

 O
TA

 C
ha

nn
el

 4
1 

an
d 

M
ed

ia
co

m
 C

ha
nn

el
 6

Br
oa

dc
as

tin
g 

to
 C

ity
 w

eb
pa

ge
As

si
st

an
ce

 w
ith

 P
ow

er
Po

in
t p

re
se

nt
at

io
ns

D
ig

ita
l c

op
y 

of
 e

ve
nt

/m
ee

tin
g 

w
ith

in
 2

 b
us

in
es

s d
ay

s
To

ta
l A

tt
or

ne
y 

Co
st

s
19

5,
87

5.
93

$ 
  

To
ta

l C
ha

m
be

rs
 u

se
 c

os
ts

4,
96

0.
00

$ 
   

   
To

ta
l I

T 
Su

pp
or

t
9,

63
0.

00
$ 

 
To

ta
l I

T 
Su

pp
or

t
9,

63
0.

00
$ 

   
   

20
16

-2
01

9 
Co

st
 to

 b
e 

re
im

bu
rs

ed
21

0,
46

5.
93

$ 
  



Grant

AwardA

Grant

Award

Arroyo Santa Rosa Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency Arroyo Santa Rosa Basin Groundwater Sustainability Plan ‐$                    177,081$            177,081$                 

B 20 Asian Business Institute Resource Center Southeast Asian Groundwater and Sustainability Advocacy and Outreach Program 400,000$            ‐$                    400,000$                 

Atascadero Mutual Water Co. 2017 Atascadero Basin Sustainable Groundwater Proposal ‐$                    809,250$            809,250$                 

Bear Valley Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency Bear Valley Basin Groundwater Sustainability Plan ‐$                    177,000$            177,000$                 

Bedford‐Coldwater Sub‐basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency
Bedford‐Coldwater Sub‐basin Groundwater Sustainability Plan Proposal

‐$                    1,000,000$        1,000,000$              

18 Big Bear Lake Department of Water and Power Basin Resiliency Sawmill Well Pumping Plant Project 782,298$            ‐$                    782,298$                 

9 Biola Community Services District Biola Groundwater Recharge Project 705,000$            ‐$                    705,000$                 

Butte County Department of Water and Resource Conservation
Groundwater Sustainability Plan Development for the Vina, East Butte, West Butte and 

Wyandotte Creek Subbasins
‐$                    1,498,800$        1,498,800$              

Castaic Lake Water Agency
Santa Clarita Valley Groundwater Sustainability Agency 2017 Sustainable Groundwater 

Planning Grant Program Category 2 Proposal
‐$                    416,106$            416,106$                 

City of Brentwood Tracy Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan Development Prop 1 Proposal ‐$                    1,000,000$        1,000,000$              

City of Corona Sustainable Groundwater Planning Grant For the City of Corona Temescal Subbasin ‐$                    732,338$            732,338$                 

City of Modesto Sustainable Groundwater Planning Grant for the Modesto Groundwater Subbasin ‐$                    1,000,000$        1,000,000$              
C City of Paso Robles Paso Robles Basin Groundwater Sustainability Plan Development ‐$                    1,500,000$        1,500,000$              

City of Redding EAGSA Enterprise and Anderson Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan ‐$                    983,230$            983,230$                 

City of San Diego ‐ Public Utilities Department Groundwater Sustainability Plan for the San Pasqual Valley Groundwater Basin ‐$                    989,550$            989,550$                 

Colusa Groundwater Authority Colusa Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan Development ‐$                    1,000,000$        1,000,000$              

10 Community Water Center
Facilitate Participation of Severely Disadvantaged Community Stakeholders In The Tulare 

Lake Basin And Develop A Drinking Water Vulnerability Tool
614,353$            ‐$                    614,353$                 

County of Glenn Groundwater Sustainability Plan Development in the Corning Subbasin 999,980$            999,980$                 

C 6 County of San Diego San Diego County GSP Development 1,000,000$        2,000,000$        3,000,000$              

County of San Luis Obispo 2017 County of San Luis Obispo Sustainable Groundwater Proposal ‐$                    1,397,125$        1,397,125$              

C 3 Cuyama Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency Cuyama Basin Groundwater Sustainability 648,124$            1,500,000$        2,148,124$              

Del Norte County Smith River Plain Groundwater Basin GSP ‐$                    250,000$            250,000$                 

East Bay Municipal Utility District East Bay Plain Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan Development ‐$                    1,000,000$        1,000,000$              

C Eastern San Joaquin Groundwater Authority Eastern San Joaquin Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan Grant ‐$                    1,500,000$        1,500,000$              

Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District
Elsinore Valley Groundwater Sustainability Agency Groundwater Sustainability Planning 

Grant Proposal
‐$                    1,000,000$        1,000,000$              

Fillmore Piru GSA Fillmore and Piru Basins Groundwater Sustainability Plans ‐$                    1,500,000$        1,500,000$              

7 Freshwater Trust 
Engaging Severely  Disadvantaged Communities in the Development of the Solano Subbasin 

Groundwater Sustainability Plan
490,000$            ‐$                    490,000$                 

C 13 Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Authority
Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Basin ‐ Groundwater Sustainability Plan Development and 

SDAC Groundwater Conservation Pilot Project
646,000$            1,500,000$        2,146,000$              

Inyo‐Water Department, County of Groundwater Sustainability Planning for the Owens Valley Groundwater Basin ‐$                    713,155$            713,155$                 

C Kern River Groundwater Sustainability Agency Kern County Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan Support ‐ 2017 Grant Application 1,500,000$        1,500,000$              

Lassen County Big Valley Groundwater Sustainability Plan ‐$                    999,185$            999,185$                 

14 Leadership Counsel for Justice and Accountability Partnering for Equitable Groundwater 758,000$            ‐$                    758,000$                 

15 Linda County Water District
Linda County Water District‐Well 17 Project Funding Application Groundwater 

Sustainability Planning Grant Program Proposal
999,500$            ‐$                    999,500$                 

Los Angeles County Waterworks District No. 37, Acton Fringe Area Antelope Valley Groundwater Sustainability Plan ‐$                    300,000$            300,000$                 

C
Lower Tule River Irrigation District Groundwater Sustainable 

Agency
Lower Tule River Irrigation District GSA, SGWP Planning Grant ‐$                    1,500,000$        1,500,000$              

C 16 Madera County Water and Natural Resources
Groundwater Monitoring Well Installation and GSP Development For The Chowchilla 

Subbasin
1,000,000$        1,500,000$        2,500,000$              

C 11 Madera County Water and Natural Resources Groundwater Monitoring Well Installation and GSP Development for the Madera Subbasin 1,000,000$        1,500,000$        2,500,000$              

Marina Coast Water District Monterey Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan Development ‐$                    1,000,000$        1,000,000$              

Mendocino County Water Agency Phase 2 of the Ukiah Valley Basin Groundwater Sustainability Plan Development ‐$                    764,255$            764,255$                 

C 1 Merced Irrigation District 2017 Merced Groundwater Subbasin Sustainability 901,261$            1,500,000$        2,401,261$              

C Mid‐Kaweah Groundwater Sustainability Agency Kaweah Sub‐Basin Groundwater Sustainability Plans Development ‐$                    1,500,000$        1,500,000$              

C Mid‐Kings River Groundwater Sustainability Agency Tulare Lake Subbasin GSP Development and SGMA Compliance Project ‐$                    1,500,000$        1,500,000$              

Mound Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency Mound Basin GSA and GSP ‐$                    758,100$            758,100$                 

2
North Cal‐Neva Resource Conservation and Development 

Council, Inc.
Big Valley GSP Monitoring and Data Development 782,344$            ‐$                    782,344$                 

C North Fork Kings Groundwater Sustainability Agency Kings Basin Groundwater Sustainability Plans ‐$                    1,500,000$        1,500,000$              

Padre Dam Municipal Water District San Diego River Valley Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) Development Proposal ‐$                    600,000$            600,000$                 

C,D Pajaro Valley Water Management Agency Pajaro Valley Groundwater Sustainability Plan ‐$                    1,500,000$        1,500,000$              

Petaluma Valley GSA Petaluma Valley Groundwater Sustainability Plan ‐$                    1,000,000$        1,000,000$              

D Sacramento Central Groundwater Authority
Development of the South American Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan (Bulletin 

118 Subbasin NO. 5‐21.65)
‐$                    970,693$            970,693$                 

Sacramento Groundwater Authority North American Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan Development ‐$                    994,276$            994,276$                 

C Salinas Valley Basin Ground Water Sustainability Agency Salinas Valley Basin Groundwater Sustainability Plan ‐$                    1,500,000$        1,500,000$              

San Antonio Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency San Antonio Basin Groundwater Sustainability Plan ‐$                    300,000$            300,000$                 

San Benito County Water District
Sustainable Groundwater Planning Grant for GSP Preparation: Bolsa, Hollister, and San 

Juan Bautista Groundwater Subbasins
‐$                    830,336$            830,336$                 

San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District Yucaipa Groundwater Sustainability Plan ‐$                    815,100$            815,100$                 

4 San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency 2017 Sustainable Groundwater Planning Grant for the San Gorgonio Pass Subbasin 1,000,000$        1,000,000$        2,000,000$              

C Santa Cruz Mid‐County Groundwater Agency Santa Cruz Mid‐County Groundwater Sustainability Plan Development ‐$                    1,500,000$        1,500,000$              

Santa Margarita Groundwater Agency Santa Margarita Groundwater Sustainability Plan Development ‐$                    1,000,000$        1,000,000$              

Santa Rosa Plain GSA Santa Rosa Plain Groundwater Sustainability Plan ‐$                    1,000,000$        1,000,000$              

Santa Ynez River Water Conservation District Santa Ynez River Valley Basin GSP Planning and Preparation ‐$                    1,000,000$        1,000,000$              

8 Self‐Help Enterprises Self‐Help Enterprises ‐ SDACs Project 1,000,000$        ‐$                    1,000,000$              

19 Shasta Valley Resource Conservation District Groundwater Monitoring Implementation Program for the Shasta Valley GSA 976,884$            ‐$                    976,884$                 

Siskiyou County Flood Control and Water Conservation District Development ‐$                    1,367,000$        1,367,000$              

Solano Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Agency Solano Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan Development ‐$                    1,000,000$        1,000,000$              

Sonoma Valley GSA Sonoma Valley Groundwater Sustainability Plan ‐$                    1,000,000$        1,000,000$              

Southeast Sacramento County Agricultural Water Authority
Establishing a Groundwater Sustainability Plan and Governance Structure for the Cosumnes 

Groundwater Sub Basin
‐$                    1,000,000$        1,000,000$              

D Sutter County Development Services Sutter Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan Development ‐$                    956,814$            956,814$                 

Tehama County Flood Control & Water Conservation District Tehama County Groundwater Sustainability Plan Development Grant Application ‐$                    1,498,960$        1,498,960$              

12 The Nature Conservancy Demonstrating Multi‐Benefit On‐Farm Managed Aquifer Recharge in the Central Valley 300,000$            ‐$                    300,000$                 

Tulelake Irrigation District
Protecting Our Groundwater Resource: Securing a Sustainable Future for the Tule Lake 

Subbasin
‐$                    721,120$            721,120$                 

Upper Ventura River Groundwater  Agency Upper Ventura River Basin GSA and GSP ‐$                    630,061$            630,061$                 

Walnut Valley Water District Spadra Groundwater Basin Groundwater Sustainability Plan Development ‐$                    338,500$            338,500$                 

C 17 West Stanislaus ID 2017 Sustainable Groundwater Planning Grant for the Delta‐Mendota Subbasin 1,178,500$        1,500,000$        2,678,500$              

West Turlock Subbasin GSA Sustainable Groundwater Planning Grant for the Turlock Groundwater Subbasin ‐$                    1,000,000$        1,000,000$              

Western Municipal Water District Riverside‐Arlington Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan ‐$                    130,000$            130,000$                 

C 5 Westlands Water District
Groundwater Monitoring Well Installation Project and Groundwater Sustainability Plan 

Development for the Westside Subbasin
1,000,000$        1,500,000$        2,500,000$              

White Wolf Groundwater Sustainability Agency White Wolf Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan Development ‐$                    557,998$            557,998$                 

Yolo County Flood Control and water Conservation District Yolo Subbasin ‐ GSP Planning and Preparation ‐$                    1,000,000$        1,000,000$              

Yuba County Water Agency Groundwater Sustainability Plans for the North Yuba Subbasin and South Yuba Subbasin ‐$                    893,948$            893,948$                 

16,182,264$      69,569,961$      85,752,225$           

A All Category 1 Projects:  Grantee shall obtain written (i.e., letter) approval of proposed scope of work from GSA, of respective basin/GSP where project is located in, prior to execution of Grant Agreement.

B Recommended funding less than requested due to recalculation of Direct Project Administration (DPA) Costs.  

C Critically Over‐Draft Basin included in application

D Applicant submitted an Alternative Plan to DWR for review. 

Total

Grant

Award

Final Awards
N
o
te

C
a
t 
1
 M

a
p
  I
D

Grantee Project Title

Category 1 Category 2

April 2018

2017 Groundwater Sustainability Plans and Projects Solicitation



 
 

INDIAN WELLS VALLEY GROUNDWATER AUTHORITY 

 

Groundwater Extraction Fee 

Data Package 

City of Ridgecrest             Kern County                     Inyo County          San Bernardino County              Indian Wells Valley Water District 

 

Exhibit 3: Determination of Fee 

 

Supporting Attachments 

• IWVGA Groundwater Production Rates – 1975 through Present 

• Letter to Kern County Board of Supervisors from Indian Wells Valley Farmers Group 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Gap Funding 

Required ¹┘

Fee Period 

(Months)

Annual Pumping 

(AFY)

Monthly 

Pumping (AF) ²┘ 
Fee ($/AF) ³┘

Option 1 $930,754 15 21,600 1,800 $35

Option 2 $930,754 21 21,600 1,800 $25

AFY = acre-feet per year

AF = acre-feet

[1] See Exhibit 2 for determination of Gap Funding Required. 

[2] Monthly pumping is annual pumping (21,600 AFY) divided by twelve months. 

[3] Fee Rate is the Gap Funding required ($930,754) divided by Fee Period divided by Monthly Pumping  (1,800 AF). 

Determination of the Groundwater Pumping Fee



Y
e
a
r

M
e
a
d

o
w

-

b
ro

o
k
 

F
a
rm

s
 (

e
)

S
im

m
o

n
s
 

R
a
n

c
h

 (
f)

C
h

in
a

L
a
k
e

A
c
re

s

C
it

y
 o

f

R
/C

S
V

M
IW

V
W

D
In

y
o

k
e
rn

C
S

D

N
A

W
S

 

(c
)

N
e
a
l 

R
a
n

c
h

P
ri

v
a
te

W
e
ll
s

Q
u

is
t

F
a
rm

s

O
rc

h
a
rd

s
 

(d
)

R
/C

H
e
ig

h
ts

S
. 
L

e
ro

y
 (

a
/b

)
A

n
n

u
a
l

T
o

ta
ls

1
9
7
5

1
5
1
6

4
0
0

2
7
8
1

2
9
8
3

3
0
0

5
0
0
0

2
0
0
0

1
0
0
0

1
5
9
8
0

1
9
7
6

1
4
9
4

4
0
0

2
9
1
1

3
0
9
9

3
0
0

5
0
0
0

2
0
0
0

1
0
0
0

1
6
0
0

1
7
8
0
4

1
9
7
7

2
7
0
2

4
0
0

3
3
1
5

3
0
6
3

3
0
0

5
0
0
0

2
0
0
0

1
0
0
0

1
6
0
0

1
9
3
8
0

1
9
7
8

3
2
1
6

4
0
0

3
0
8
1

3
3
5
7

3
0
0

5
0
0
0

2
0
0
0

1
0
0
0

1
6
0
0

1
9
9
5
4

1
9
7
9

3
2
5
7

4
0
0

3
0
8
1

3
4
0
2

3
0
0

5
1
5
4

2
0
0
0

2
1
0
0

1
0
0
0

1
6
0
0

2
2
2
9
4

1
9
8
0

7
5
1
5

4
0
0

2
8
8
7

3
3
1
9

3
0
0

4
9
9
5

2
0
4
1

2
1
0
0

1
0
0
0

1
6
0
0

2
6
1
5
7

1
9
8
1

1
0
0
3
6

4
0
0

3
0
6
5

4
2
2
3

3
0
0

4
8
0
4

2
0
0
2

2
1
0
0

1
0
0
0

1
6
0
0

2
9
5
3
0

1
9
8
2

1
0
3
2
4

4
0
0

2
8
8
7

3
9
6
3

3
0
0

4
4
5
0

1
4
7
8

2
1
0
0

1
0
0
0

1
6
0
0

2
8
5
0
2

1
9
8
3

1
0
0
8
7

4
0
0

2
4
7
6

4
3
1
6

3
0
0

4
4
0
2

1
7
5
2

2
4
0
0

1
0
0
0

1
6
0
0

2
8
7
3
3

1
9
8
4

1
0
3
1
2

4
0
0

2
3
0
7

4
9
4
0

3
0
0

4
6
9
4

1
5
6
8

2
4
0
0

1
0
0
0

1
6
0
0

2
9
5
2
1

1
9
8
5

1
0
1
0
0

4
0
0

2
3
9
7

4
9
8
1

3
0
0

4
0
0
2

2
4
5
0

2
5
0
0

1
0
0
0

1
6
0
0

2
9
7
3
0

1
9
8
6

5
3
8
9

4
0
0

2
5
5
7

5
9
0
1

3
0
0

4
4
3
0

2
3
5
3

2
5
0
0

1
0
0
0

1
6
0
0

2
6
4
3
0

1
9
8
7

4
1
4
1

P
u

rc
h

a
s
e
d

2
5
6
0

7
4
2
6

3
0
0

4
4
2
2

1
4
4
7

2
5
0
0

P
u

rc
h

a
s
e
d

R
a
n

c
h

2
2
7
9
6

1
9
8
8

5
2
5
5

b
y

2
5
6
0

7
8
8
9

1
7
3

3
9
8
0

1
1
9
5

2
5
0
0

b
y

C
lo

s
e
d

2
3
5
5
2

1
9
8
9

7
0
6
4

IW
V

W
D

2
3
2
0

8
7
2
5

1
7
5

4
2
0
5

P
u

rc
h

a
s
e
d

2
6
5
0

5
0
0

IW
V

W
D

2
5
6
3
9

1
9
9
0

6
1
8
7

2
5
0
5

8
6
0
0

1
7
0

3
6
6
7

b
y

2
6
5
0

5
2
5

2
4
3
0
4

1
9
9
1

6
7
3
7

2
4
0
6

7
7
0
0

1
5
0

3
3
6
4

IW
V

W
D

2
6
5
0

5
2
5

2
3
5
3
2

1
9
9
2

7
1
0
4

2
5
2
8

7
6
5
0

1
4
1

3
3
5
1

2
6
5
0

5
5
0

2
3
9
7
4

1
9
9
3

7
7
0
1

2
6
0
7

7
8
0
0

1
5
0

3
4
1
1

2
6
5
0

5
7
5

2
4
8
9
4

1
9
9
4

7
5
0
4

2
6
0
7

8
3
0
0

1
4
6

3
6
8
4

2
6
5
0

5
7
5

2
5
4
6
6

1
9
9
5

7
4
2
7

2
7
1
0

8
1
0
0

1
2
5

3
8
4
8

2
6
5
0

5
9
5

2
5
4
5
5

1
9
9
6

7
8
0
7

2
6
2
0

8
5
0
4

1
3
4

3
3
6
7

2
6
5
0

6
0
0

2
5
6
8
2

1
9
9
7

7
8
0
0

2
5
2
2

8
5
3
4

1
3
9

2
9
8
3

2
6
5
0

6
2
5

2
5
2
5
3

1
9
9
8

7
8
0
0

2
5
2
7

7
7
1
9

1
0
2

3
0
1
8

2
7
0
0

6
4
0

2
4
5
0
6

1
9
9
9

7
8
0
0

2
5
3
7

8
2
4
2

1
0
4

2
5
4
1

2
7
0
0

6
9
0

2
4
6
1
4

2
0
0
0

7
8
0
0

2
7
0
1

8
1
4
8

1
1
1

2
6
9
0

2
8
0
0

7
2
5

2
4
9
7
5

2
0
0
1

8
1
5
0

2
7
3
2

8
3
9
2

9
7

2
8
4
0

2
8
0
0

7
5
0

2
5
7
6
1

2
0
0
2

8
4
6
0

4
4
5

2
5
6
4

8
8
6
5

1
1
5
.6

3
1
3
8

2
8
0
0

7
5
0

7
5
0

2
7
8
8
7
.6

2
0
0
3

9
4
2
0

6
1
6

2
5
6
1

9
0
9
8

1
2
6

3
3
2
5

2
8
0
0

7
5
0

7
7
5

2
9
4
7
1

2
0
0
4

9
3
7
0

4
1
3

2
4
7
0

8
9
9
2

1
1
8
.4

2
3
3
1

2
8
0
0

7
5
0

8
0
0

9
5
0

2
8
9
9
4
.4

2
0
0
5

9
5
8
0

3
6
6

2
5
0
4

8
5
4
5

1
3
5

2
2
8
8

2
8
0
0

7
5
0

8
2
5

1
0
2
5

2
8
8
1
8

2
0
0
6

9
4
6
0

3
8
5

2
5
9
1
.2

8
8
6
4
.4

1
3
5

2
4
4
0

2
8
0
0

7
5
0

8
4
0

1
0
5
0

2
9
3
1
5
.6

2
0
0
7

9
2
7
0

4
2
0

2
5
3
0
.4

9
1
9
8
.5

9
0
.7

2
5
3
3

2
8
0
0

7
5
0

8
4
0

1
0
0
0

2
9
4
3
2
.6

2
0
0
8

8
9
5
7

3
9
2

2
5
2
0
.7

8
5
6
4
.8

1
1
8

2
1
1
9

2
8
0
0

7
5
0

9
0
0

1
2
0
0

2
8
3
2
1
.5

2
0
0
9

9
5
3
6

4
0
0

2
5
3
4
.5

8
3
9
8
.2

1
1
8

1
8
8
3

2
8
0
0

7
5
0

9
2
5

1
1
2
5

2
8
4
6
9
.7

2
0
1
0

9
4
3
7

3
3
9

2
5
8
6
.6

7
5
7
0

1
1
8

1
7
1
0

2
8
0
0

7
5
0

9
2
5

1
0
5
0

2
7
2
8
5
.6

2
0
1
1

9
8
2
7

3
7
0

2
4
5
7
.5

7
3
6
4
.2

5
1
1
8

1
7
3
4

2
8
0
0

7
5
0

9
2
5

1
0
5
0

2
7
3
9
5
.7

5

2
0
1
2

9
8
7
6

3
4
8

2
7
4
3

7
6
3
3
.4

5
1
1
7
.9

2
7

1
7
1
0

2
8
0
0

7
5
0

1
0
6
2

8
0
0

2
7
8
4
0
.3

7
7

2
0
1
3

9
3
5
4

9
1
8

4
2
3

2
7
0
6

7
5
3
1
.6

9
1
1
7
.6

8
1
5
3
8

1
1
0
0

7
5
0

2
8
4
6

2
7
2
8
4
.3

7

2
0
1
4

7
5
2
4

1
,0

8
7

3
9
2

2
6
7
9

7
3
1
8
.7

1
0
8

1
6
1
8

1
1
0
0

7
5
0

4
0
8
7

2
6
6
6
3
.7

2
0
1
5

6
5
1
7

1
,0

0
3

4
2
7

2
5
1
8

7
0
5
0

9
0
.5

3
2

1
4
4
2

1
1
0
0

7
5
0

4
3
8
7

2
5
2
8
4
.5

3
2

2
0
1
6

6
3
8
7

9
1
8

3
7
3

2
3
7
7

6
4
1
1
.8

1
0
2
.3

3
5

1
5
9
5

1
1
0
0

7
5
0

4
3
0
0

2
4
3
1
4
.1

3
5

T
o

ta
l

3
1
5
2
0
0

3
9
2
6

4
8
0
0

6
1
0
9

1
1
0
5
3
0

2
9
0
6
8
1
.7

9
7
5
4
6
.1

7
4

1
3
9
7
0
6

2
6
2
8
6

9
3
2
5
0

1
1
2
5
0

3
3
0
6
2

1
2
0
0
0

2
6
8
5
0

1
0
8
1
1
9
6
.9

A
v
g

.
7
5
3
2

1
0
0
3

4
0
0

4
1
0

2
6
3
8

6
9
3
3

1
8
2

3
3
6
9

1
8
7
8

2
4
9
1

7
5
0

1
0
6
5

1
0
0
0

1
3
4
3

2
5
7
7
8

(a
) 

S
p
ik

e
 L

e
ro

y
 r

a
n
c
h
 s

ta
rt

e
d
 b

a
c
k
 u

p
 i
n
 2

0
0
4
 w

it
h
 a

p
p
ro

x
. 
1
5
0
 a

c
re

s
 o

f 
a
lf
a
lf
a
 x

 7
(d

) 
2
0
1
3
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

b
a
s
e
d
 o

n
 M

a
rc

h
 4

, 
2
0
1
4
 l
e
tt
e

r 
to

 B
O

S
.

(b
) 

2
0
1
2
 n

u
m

b
e
r 

is
 a

n
 e

s
ti
m

a
te

/c
o
n
v
e
rt

e
d
 t
o
 p

is
ta

c
h
io

 2
0
1
3

2
0
1
4
/2

0
1
5
/2

0
1
6
 d

a
ta

 i
n
c
lu

d
e
s
 3

,7
0
0
 a

n
d
 4

,0
0
0
 A

F
 f
ro

m
 M

o
ja

v
e
 P

is
ta

c
io

(c
) 

N
a
v
y
 b

e
g
a
n
 a

g
g
re

s
s
iv

e
 w

a
te

r 
c
o
n
s
e
rv

a
ti
o
n
 p

ro
g
ra

m
 i
n
 2

0
0
7

"b
a
s
e
d
 o

ff
 t
h
e
 U

C
 D

a
v
is

 P
is

ta
c
h
io

 C
o
s
t 
S

tu
d
y
 p

lu
s
 d

u
s
t 
m

it
ig

a
ti
o
n
."

(e
) 

2
0
0
5
 B

ro
w

n
 R

o
a
d
 F

a
rm

in
g
 c

h
a
n
g
e
d
 t
o
 M

e
a
d
o
w

b
ro

o
k
 F

a
rm

s

IW
V

 G
ro

u
n

d
 W

a
te

r 
P

ro
d

u
c
ti

o
n

 E
s
ti

m
a
te

s
 1

9
7
5
 -

 P
re

s
e
n

t



(f
) 

S
im

m
o
n
s
 A

lf
a
lf
a
 R

a
n
c
h
 a

d
d
e
d
 M

a
rc

h
 2

0
1
4













 
 

INDIAN WELLS VALLEY GROUNDWATER AUTHORITY 

 

Groundwater Extraction Fee 

Data Package 

City of Ridgecrest             Kern County                     Inyo County          San Bernardino County              Indian Wells Valley Water District 

 

Exhibit 4: Groundwater Sustainability Plan Schedule 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



ID
Ta

sk
 N

am
e

1
GS

P 
De

ve
lo

pm
en

t

2
Pr

op
 1

 G
ra

nt
 A

pp
lic

at
io

n

3
GS

P 
Su

pp
or

t S
tu

di
es

 (R
ec

ha
rg

e 
St

ud
y,

 B
ra

ck
ish

 W
at

er
 S

tu
dy

)

4
Sa

lt 
an

d 
N

ut
rie

nt
 M

an
ag

em
en

t P
la

n 
De

ve
lo

pm
en

t

5
Da

ta
 M

an
ag

em
en

t S
ys

te
m

6
Hy

dr
og

eo
lo

gi
c C

on
ce

pt
ua

l M
od

el

7
N

um
er

ic
al

 G
ro

un
dw

at
er

 M
od

el

8
Hy

dr
og

eo
lo

gi
c D

at
a 

Ga
p 

Ev
al

ua
tio

n 
an

d 
An

al
ys

is

9
 Im

po
rt

ed
 W

at
er

 /A
lte

rn
at

iv
e 

So
ur

ce
s E

va
lu

at
io

n 

10
Re

cy
cl

ed
 W

at
er

 E
va

lu
at

io
n

11
GS

P 
Re

po
rt

 P
re

pa
ra

tio
n:

 D
ev

el
op

 In
iti

al
 D

ra
ft 

an
d 

Fi
na

l G
SP

12
Pu

bl
ic

 H
ea

rin
g 

an
d 

Ad
op

tio
n 

of
 P

la
n

13
SD

AC
 P

ro
gr

am
s

14
SD

AC
 W

at
er

 C
on

se
rv

at
io

n 
an

d 
Re

ba
te

 P
ro

gr
am

15
SD

AC
 W

at
er

 A
ud

it,
 Le

ak
 D

et
ec

tio
n,

 a
nd

 Le
ak

 R
ep

ai
r P

ro
gr

am

Q
tr 

1
Q

tr 
2

Q
tr 

3
Q

tr 
4

Q
tr 

1
Q

tr 
2

Q
tr 

3
Q

tr 
4

Q
tr 

1
Q

tr 
2

Q
tr 

3
Q

tr 
4

Q
tr 

1
Q

tr 
2

Q
tr 

3
Q

tr 
4

Q
tr 

1
Q

tr 
2

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

20
20

Ta
sk

Su
m

m
ar

y

In
di

an
 W

el
ls

 V
al

le
y 

G
ro

un
dw

at
er

 A
ut

ho
rit

y
G

SP
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 S

D
A

C 
Pr

og
ra

m
s: 

Sc
he

du
le

 S
um

m
ar

y 
05

.0
9.

18

Pa
ge

 1

Pr
oj

ec
t: 

IW
VG

A 
Pr

oj
ec

t S
ch

ed
ul

e 
Su

m
m

ar
y



 
 

INDIAN WELLS VALLEY GROUNDWATER AUTHORITY 

 

Groundwater Extraction Fee 

Data Package 

City of Ridgecrest             Kern County                     Inyo County          San Bernardino County              Indian Wells Valley Water District 

 

Exhibit 5: Methods to Quantify/Report Groundwater 

Production 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Authority 
 

Methods to Quantify/Report Groundwater Production 
 
 

The Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Authority (GA) is considering the adoption of a 

“groundwater pumping fee”, under the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act 

(SGMA), and California Water Code Division 6 Part 2.74 Chapter 8 Section 10730.  The 

GA Board has set a GA Board meeting and public workshop to publicly discuss the 

planned groundwater pumping fee.  

 

In order to levy this fee, the GA must collect information on active wells within the Indian 

Wells Valley groundwater basin and collect information on the quantity of water pumped 

from each relevant well.  SGMA provides that wells pumping two (2) acre-feet per year of 

water or less are considered “de minimis” pumping and will not be subject to this fee (one 

acre-foot per year is approximately equivalent to 900 gallons per day).  In addition, since 

SGMA is a state-mandated regulation, it is not enforceable upon federal agencies.  

Accordingly, any pumping by the United States Navy and the U.S. Department of Interior 

Bureau of Land Management (BLM) is excluded from this fee.  

 

Quantify/Reporting Groundwater Pumping 

 

The accuracy and completeness of groundwater pumping information within the Indian 

Wells Valley groundwater basin is extremely important to the GA’s mandate to manage 

groundwater supplies.  The GA strongly recommends that all wells owners within the 

basin install and maintain accurate water meters on the discharge of all wells.  

When the GA adopts a DWR-approved Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP) for the 

basin, the GA will be in a position to require accurate water meters be installed and 

maintained on all wells.  This requirement is expected to be established during 2020. 

 



It is anticipated the Board will consider adopting this fee at its June 2018 Board meeting.  

If adopted at the June 2018 Board meeting, the first month of groundwater pumping 

subject to the groundwater pumping fee would be August  2018.  

 

The GA staff is collecting information on all wells within the basin and associated 

groundwater pumping.  The most current list of wells and water systems potentially 

subject to the groundwater pumping fee is provided in Exhibit 6. The GA staff will continue 

to update the well and water system listing to make it complete and accurate.  

 

For basin wells with meters, well owners would submit production data to the GA. For 

basin wells subject to fees without accurate water meters, the monthly groundwater 

production must be determined using “alternative methods for reporting groundwater 

pumping”.  For wells without accurate water meters, the following alternative methods 

may be employed by the GA staff to determine monthly groundwater pumping for GA fee 

pumpers:  

 

1. Electric Power Use.  The well, or wells, must have dedicated electric power meters 

for the well, or wells (no other power use associated with electric meters).  The 

well owner will provide monthly electric power use for each and a wells served by 

the electric meter.  The GA staff will convert electronic power use to acre-feet of 

water pumped for GA fee purposes. (Similar procedure for wells powered by other 

sources.) 

2. Agricultural Use Estimates.  For agricultural-use estimates, the well owner must 

identify all wells used for agricultural irrigation.  The well owner must provide 

accurate agricultural acreage and type of agriculture.  The GA staff will use this 

agricultural information to estimate annual and monthly groundwater pumping.  

The methods and references used by the GA staff will be provided to the well 

owner.  

3. Comparable Use to Metered Well(s).  The GA staff will consider using groundwater 

pumping information from “metered” wells, for “comparable” uses from “non-

measured” wells, based upon the GA staff’s determination of comparability.  



 

Well owners with “non-metered” wells are reminded that if there is dispute with GA staff 

regarding water use estimates using “alternative methods”, the well owner can elect to 

install an accurate water meter on their well.  The GA will provide assistance to the extent 

it is capable.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

J:\2652 IWVGA\14 - Assessment Support\revised_data_package\Revised_Methods_to_Quantify.docx 



 
 

INDIAN WELLS VALLEY GROUNDWATER AUTHORITY 

 

Groundwater Extraction Fee 

Data Package 

City of Ridgecrest             Kern County                     Inyo County          San Bernardino County              Indian Wells Valley Water District 

 

Exhibit 6: Listing of IWV Wells and Water Systems 

(As of May 31, 2018. Listing updated periodically as needed.) 

 

 

 

 



W
EL

L 
O

W
N

ER
/W

A
TE

R
 S

Y
ST

EM
D

D
W

 W
A

TE
R

 

SY
ST

EM
 N

U
M

B
ER

W
EL

L 
N

A
M

E/
 P

ER
M

IT
 

N
U

M
B

ER

IN
TE

N
D

ED
 U

SE
 /

 

TY
P

E

P
O

P
U

LA
T

IO
N

 

SE
R

V
ED

N
O

. O
F 

C
O

N
N

EC
T

IO
N

S
P

R
O

D
U

C
TI

O
N

W
EL

LS
 IN

 S
A

N
 B

ER
N

A
R

D
IN

O
 C

O
U

N
TY

D
al

e
 R

o
b

in
so

n
In

d
iv

id
u

al
\ 

D
o

m
es

ti
c

Jo
h

n
 L

am
b

In
d

iv
id

u
al

\ 
D

o
m

es
ti

c

Jo
rg

e 
M

. G
o

n
za

le
z

In
d

iv
id

u
al

\ 
D

o
m

es
ti

c

W
EL

LS
 IN

 IN
Y

O
 C

O
U

N
TY

C
o

m
m

er
ci

al
 

C
o

m
m

er
ci

al
 

C
o

m
m

er
ci

al
 

C
o

m
m

er
ci

al
 

C
o

m
m

er
ci

al
 

C
o

m
m

er
ci

al
 

W
e

ll 
1

N

W
e

ll 
2

S

R
es

d
en

ti
al

R
es

d
en

ti
al

R
es

d
en

ti
al

R
es

d
en

ti
al

V
ac

an
t

C
o

m
m

er
ci

al
 

C
o

m
m

er
ci

al
 

R
es

d
en

ti
al

R
es

d
en

ti
al

In
st

it
u

ti
o

n
al

R
es

d
en

ti
al

R
es

d
en

ti
al

In
d

u
st

ri
al

R
es

d
en

ti
al

V
ac

an
t

R
es

d
en

ti
al

R
es

d
en

ti
al

W
EL

LS
 IN

 K
ER

N
 C

O
U

N
TY

K
N

O
W

N
 L

A
R

G
E 

P
U

R
V

EY
O

R
S

W
P

0
0

0
7

1
7

5
P

u
b

lic

W
P

0
0

0
9

3
6

6
P

u
b

lic

W
P

0
0

1
3

7
9

0
A

gr
ic

u
lt

u
ra

l

9
a

1
0

1
1

1
3

1
7

1
8

3
0

3
1

3
3

3
4

3
5

 (
p

la
n

n
ed

 o
p

er
at

io
n

 in
 2

0
1

9
)

IN
D

IA
N

 W
EL

LS
 V

A
LL

EY
 W

A
TE

R
 D

IS
TR

IC
T1

/3
/8

/9
/

C
A

1
5

10
0

1
7

2
9

,7
9

1
11

,7
71

6,
41

2
4

/

P
er

m
it

te
d

 W
at

er
 S

ys
te

m

St
ru

ct
u

re
 P

re
se

n
t 

--
 W

e
ll 

St
at

u
s 

U
n

kn
o

w
n

C
o

m
m

er
ci

al
 /

 

R
es

ta
u

ra
n

t

IN
D

IA
N

 W
EL

LS
 V

A
LL

EY
 G

R
O

U
N

D
W

A
TE

R
 B

A
SI

N
 W

EL
L/

SY
ST

EM
 L

IS
TI

N
G

P
ea

rs
o

n
vi

lle
 W

at
er

 S
ys

te
m

8
/

C
A

1
4

00
0

4
3

1
0

0
2

0



W
EL

L 
O

W
N

ER
/W

A
TE

R
 S

Y
ST

EM
D

D
W

 W
A

TE
R

 

SY
ST

EM
 N

U
M

B
ER

W
EL

L 
N

A
M

E/
 P

ER
M

IT
 

N
U

M
B

ER

IN
TE

N
D

ED
 U

SE
 /

 

TY
P

E

P
O

P
U

LA
T

IO
N

 

SE
R

V
ED

N
O

. O
F 

C
O

N
N

EC
T

IO
N

S
P

R
O

D
U

C
TI

O
N

2
6

S4
0

E2
9

R

2
6

S4
0

E3
4

F

2
6

S4
0

E3
4

N
0

1

2
7

S4
0

E0
4

A
0

1

2
7

S4
0

E0
5

H

W
e

ll 
1

 (
in

ac
ti

ve
)

W
e

ll 
2

 (
st

an
d

b
y)

W
e

ll 
3

W
P

0
0

1
2

0
8

6
A

gr
ic

u
lt

u
ra

l

W
P

0
0

1
4

9
1

9
P

ri
va

te

W
P

0
0

0
6

4
1

6
P

ri
va

te

W
P

0
0

1
4

9
1

8

W
P

0
0

1
0

8
5

3
A

gr
ic

u
lt

u
ra

l

W
P

0
0

0
9

1
7

9
A

gr
ic

u
lt

u
ra

l

W
P

0
0

1
3

9
9

3
P

ri
va

te

W
P

0
0

1
3

8
1

6
A

gr
ic

u
lt

u
ra

l

W
P

0
0

1
4

3
6

7
A

gr
ic

u
lt

u
ra

l

W
P

0
0

1
3

1
8

0
A

gr
ic

u
lt

u
ra

l

W
P

0
0

1
4

4
3

0
A

gr
ic

u
lt

u
ra

l

W
P

0
0

1
3

7
9

2
A

gr
ic

u
lt

u
ra

l

IW
V

 W
e

ll 
#2

IW
V

 W
e

ll 
#4

IW
V

 W
e

ll 
#3

0

IW
V

 W
e

ll 
#3

5

IW
V

 W
e

ll 
#3

6

W
P

0
0

0
2

7
9

3
P

ri
va

te

W
P

0
0

1
4

9
5

5
A

gr
ic

u
lt

u
ra

l

Si
m

m
o

n
s 

R
an

ch
 /

 J
ac

k 
Si

m
m

o
n

s
3

/
W

P
0

0
1

3
2

5
7

A
gr

ic
u

lt
u

ra
l

9
1

84
/

3
/

W
P

0
0

1
4

7
0

8
A

gr
ic

u
lt

u
ra

l
3

7
35

/

3
/

W
P

0
0

1
4

6
4

9
A

gr
ic

u
lt

u
ra

l

A
m

b
er

 G
lo

w
 R

an
ch

 /
 P

at
ri

ci
a 

D
av

is
3

/
W

P
0

0
1

4
9

4
0

A
gr

ic
u

lt
u

ra
l

4
85

/

A
rt

 H
ic

kl
e

 (
H

ic
kl

e
 F

am
ily

 T
ru

st
)

3
/

W
P

0
0

1
3

4
6

3
A

gr
ic

u
lt

u
ra

l
8

55
/

Li
st

s 
o

f 
M

u
tu

al
s/

St
at

e
 S

m
al

l S
ys

te
m

s

B
ra

d
y'

s 
C

af
é 

an
d

 M
in

i M
ar

t9
/

5
0

3

B
u

tt
er

m
ilk

 A
cr

es
8

/9
/

C
A

1
5

02
6

9
5

W
e

ll 
1

R
es

id
en

ti
al

6
0

2

C
as

p
ar

 W
at

er
 S

ys
te

m
7

/9
/1

1
/

W
A

0
0

0
1

1
1

5
8

W
EL

L 
1

R
es

id
en

ti
al

6
0

6
0

W
EL

L 
2

R
es

id
en

ti
al

6
0

6
0

C
re

st
vi

e
w

 W
at

er
 S

ys
te

m
7

/9
/

W
A

0
0

0
0

4
7

3
1

2
6

D
el

 S
o

l W
at

er
 C

o
-O

p
9

/1
0

/

P
ri

va
te

D
ix

ie
 W

at
er

 C
o

m
p

an
y9

/1
0

/

D
o

m
es

ti
c 

W
at

er
 S

ys
te

m
9

/1
0

/

D
O

N
N

A
 S

U
E 

W
A

TE
R

 C
O

-O
P

3
/7

/9
/

W
P

0
0

0
1

3
4

4
 /

 W
A

0
0

0
1

4
0

3
N

o
n

-P
u

b
lic

2
4

1
4

W
e

ll 
1

W
e

ll 
2

1
1

9
3

65

D
u

n
e 

III
 M

u
tu

al
 W

at
er

 C
o

m
p

an
y8

/9
 C

A
1

50
2

6
90

R
es

id
en

ti
al

D
es

er
t 

Sa
n

d
s 

M
u

tu
al

 W
at

er
 C

o
-O

p
 /

 R
an

d
al

 S
m

it
h

7
/9

/
3

/
W

P
0

0
1

6
8

6
3

 /
 W

A
0

0
0

0
4

3
9

 
1

5

Q
u

is
t 

Fa
rm

s/
D

o
n

 Q
u

is
t

3
/

7
5

04
/

Si
e

rr
a 

Sh
ad

o
w

s 
R

an
ch

  /
 J

o
h

n
 T

h
o

m
as

 C
o

n
aw

ay

C
h

in
a 

La
ke

 A
cr

es
 M

u
tu

al
 W

at
er

 C
o

m
p

an
y 

2
/8

/9
/

C
A

1
5

00
5

6
3

M
O

JA
V

E 
P

IS
TA

C
H

IO
 /

 R
TS

 A
G

R
I B

U
SI

N
ES

S
3

/
3

2
55

/

Se
ar

le
s 

V
al

le
y1

/3
/

2,
37

7
4

/

M
A

X
 H

O
V

A
TE

N
3

/
4

8
05

/

M
EA

D
O

W
B

R
O

O
K

 D
A

IR
Y

3
/

6,
38

7
4

/

R
es

id
en

ti
al

9
8

4
2

6
5

1
0

24
/

C
it

y 
o

f 
R

id
ge

cr
es

t2
/

3
7

34
/

In
yo

ke
rn

 C
SD

2
/8

/9
/

 C
A

1
51

0
0

36



W
EL

L 
O

W
N

ER
/W

A
TE

R
 S

Y
ST

EM
D

D
W

 W
A

TE
R

 

SY
ST

EM
 N

U
M

B
ER

W
EL

L 
N

A
M

E/
 P

ER
M

IT
 

N
U

M
B

ER

IN
TE

N
D

ED
 U

SE
 /

 

TY
P

E

P
O

P
U

LA
T

IO
N

 

SE
R

V
ED

N
O

. O
F 

C
O

N
N

EC
T

IO
N

S
P

R
O

D
U

C
TI

O
N

D
u

n
e 

I W
at

er
7

/
W

A
0

0
0

0
5

4
4

1
5

9

D
u

n
e 

V
 W

at
er

7
/

W
A

0
0

0
0

5
5

2
2

4
8

W
e

ll 
1

 (
N

ad
in

e 
W

e
st

)
R

es
id

en
ti

al
8

7
2

8

W
e

ll 
2

 (
N

ad
in

e 
Ea

st
)

R
es

id
en

ti
al

8
7

2
8

El
 S

o
la

n
a 

Tr
ai

le
r 

P
ar

k9
/1

0
/

8
5

Fe
rr

an
 W

at
er

 S
ys

te
m

7
/9

/
W

A
0

0
0

0
5

2
7

2
1

1
0

G
at

ew
ay

 M
ar

ke
t 

W
at

er
 S

ys
te

m
8

/9
/

C
A

1
5

02
6

7
3

W
e

ll 
1

R
ec

re
at

io
n

/ 
C

M
1

0
4

2

G
ilb

er
t 

M
u

tu
al

 W
at

er
 C

o
m

p
an

y7
/9

/
W

A
0

0
0

0
5

4
1

3
1

7

H
am

m
ar

 W
at

er
 C

o
-O

p
7

/
W

A
0

0
0

1
2

6
7

1
7

9

H
o

m
et

o
w

n
 W

at
er

 A
ss

o
ci

at
io

n
8

/9
/

 C
A

1
50

0
5

64
W

e
ll 

1
 (

M
ai

n
)

R
es

id
en

ti
al

2
5

1
2

IA
C

 W
at

er
 C

o
m

p
an

y7
/9

/1
0

/
W

A
0

0
0

6
6

2
7

6
0

8

In
d

ia
n

 W
e

lls
 L

o
d

ge
8

/9
/

C
A

1
5

02
4

1
8

Sp
ri

n
g 

1
C

o
m

m
er

ci
al

4
7

4

Ju
m

p
er

 S
t 

W
at

er
 C

o
-o

p
3

/7
/9

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
5

1
3

 /
 W

A
0

0
0

0
5

4
3

P
u

b
lic

1
2

7

W
P

0
0

1
1

9
0

8
P

u
b

lic

W
e

ll 
1

 (
st

an
d

b
y)

W
e

ll 
2

LE
LI

TE
R

 C
O

-O
P

 W
A

TE
R

 S
YS

TE
M

3
/7

/1
1

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
7

6
4

  /
 W

A
0

0
0

1
4

7
8

P
ri

va
te

8

M
ir

ag
e 

St
 W

at
er

 C
o

-O
p

7
/

W
A

0
0

0
0

5
5

3
1

3
5

O
w

en
s 

P
ea

k 
So

u
th

8
/9

/
 C

A
1

50
2

6
59

W
e

ll 
1

4
0

1
7

O
w

en
s 

P
ea

k 
W

e
st

8
/9

/
 C

A
1

50
2

6
08

W
e

ll 
1

 -
 W

e
st

6
0

2
4

P
in

o
n

 W
at

er
 S

ys
te

m
3

/7
/

W
P

0
0

0
0

0
5

0
 /

 W
A

0
0

0
0

5
4

0
P

u
b

lic
7

7

W
P

0
0

0
0

0
4

3
 /

 W
A

0
0

0
0

5
3

6
P

ri
va

te

W
P

0
0

0
8

0
6

0
 /

 W
A

0
0

0
0

5
3

6
P

ri
va

te

R
id

ge
cr

es
t 

C
h

ri
st

ia
n

 F
el

lo
w

sh
ip

9
/1

0
/

1
0

0
3

Sa
n

d
y'

s 
O

as
is

 M
o

b
ile

 H
o

m
e 

P
ar

k9
/1

0
/

1
0

2

W
P

0
0

1
1

1
7

7
P

u
b

lic

W
e

ll 
2

W
e

ll 
3

So
u

th
 D

es
er

t 
M

u
tu

al
 W

at
er

 C
o

m
p

an
y8

/9
/

C
A

1
5

02
6

1
9

W
e

ll 
1

R
es

id
en

ti
al

2
6

1
3

Sw
ee

t 
W

at
er

 C
o

-O
p

8
/9

/
C

A
1

5
00

5
9

1
W

e
ll 

1
R

es
id

en
ti

al
4

7
1

5

W
ar

re
n

 W
at

er
 S

ys
te

m
7

/
W

A
0

0
0

0
5

6
7

5

W
P

0
0

1
1

5
9

8
P

u
b

lic

W
e

ll 
1

W
e

ll 
2

Ye
llo

w
 B

ir
d

 W
at

er
 C

o
-O

p
7

/9
/

W
A

0
0

0
0

5
3

7
2

0
8

Li
st

s 
o

f 
N

o
n

-P
u

b
lic

 S
ys

te
m

s

11
1

2 
W

EL
L 

SH
A

R
IN

G
 A

G
R

EE
M

EN
T7

/
W

A
0

0
0

1
5

4
1

2

W
P

0
0

0
1

3
2

7
 /

 W
A

0
0

0
1

2
5

7
N

o
n

-P
u

b
lic

W
P

0
0

0
1

3
3

2
 /

 W
A

0
0

0
1

2
5

7
N

o
n

-P
u

b
lic

4
15

 N
 P

ri
m

av
er

a 
W

e
ll7

/
W

A
0

0
0

1
0

8
2

4

7
50

 N
 P

ri
m

av
er

a 
W

e
ll7

/
W

A
0

0
0

1
2

1
4

2

A
-1

 W
A

TE
R

 C
O

M
P

A
N

Y3
/7

/
W

P
0

0
0

2
1

4
5

 /
 W

A
0

0
0

1
4

6
8

N
o

n
-P

u
b

lic
4

B
 &

 B
 W

at
er

 S
ys

te
m

7
/

W
A

0
0

0
0

1
0

0
3

B
ar

el
 C

ac
tu

s 
W

at
er

 S
ys

te
m

7
/

W
A

0
0

0
0

6
2

5
2

B
as

s 
W

at
er

 S
ys

te
m

7
/

W
A

0
0

0
0

0
8

9
3

B
er

gm
an

 W
at

er
 C

o
m

p
an

y3
/7

/
W

P
0

0
0

8
1

5
6

 /
 W

A
0

0
0

0
6

2
6

P
ri

va
te

/A
gr

ic
u

lt
u

re

B
IL

L 
C

O
R

LE
Y

3
/

W
P

0
0

0
9

6
8

2
N

o
n

-P
u

b
lic

41
2 

N
O

R
TH

 J
A

C
K

S 
R

A
N

C
H

 W
EL

L3
/7

/
4

7
0

4
1

R
es

id
en

ti
al

R
es

id
en

ti
al

W
ES

T 
V

A
LL

EY
 M

U
TU

A
L 

W
A

TE
R

 C
O

3
/8

/9
/

C
A

1
5

00
5

5
0

SI
ER

R
A

 B
R

EE
ZE

 M
U

TU
A

L 
W

A
TE

R
 C

O
3

/8
/9

/
C

A
1

5
00

4
4

7
1

5
0

6
0

P
lu

to
 W

e
st

 W
at

er
 C

o
3

/7
/9

/1
0

/
1

6
81
8

Ea
st

 In
yo

ke
rn

 M
u

tu
al

 W
at

er
8

/9
/

C
A

1
5

00
5

5
4

LI
FE

 W
A

TE
R

 C
O

-O
P

3
/8

/9
/

C
A

1
5

00
5

7
9

2
7



W
EL

L 
O

W
N

ER
/W

A
TE

R
 S

Y
ST

EM
D

D
W

 W
A

TE
R

 

SY
ST

EM
 N

U
M

B
ER

W
EL

L 
N

A
M

E/
 P

ER
M

IT
 

N
U

M
B

ER

IN
TE

N
D

ED
 U

SE
 /

 

TY
P

E

P
O

P
U

LA
T

IO
N

 

SE
R

V
ED

N
O

. O
F 

C
O

N
N

EC
T

IO
N

S
P

R
O

D
U

C
TI

O
N

B
lu

b
 W

at
er

 C
o

-o
p

3
/7

/
W

P
0

0
0

4
2

2
2

 /
 W

A
0

0
0

1
1

2
5

N
o

n
-P

u
b

lic
4

W
P

0
0

0
4

3
5

3
 /

 W
A

0
0

0
1

0
4

8
P

ri
va

te
2

W
P

0
0

0
3

2
2

3
  /

 W
A

0
0

0
1

0
4

8
P

ri
va

te
3

B
ro

w
n

 C
o

yo
te

 W
at

er
 S

ys
te

m
3

/7
/

W
P

0
0

0
0

0
5

5
  /

 W
A

0
0

0
0

6
2

2
P

ri
va

te
4

C
ac

tu
s 

C
an

yo
n

 V
ie

w
 W

at
er

 C
o

o
p

W
A

0
0

0
0

6
2

8
4

C
h

u
rc

h
-P

ri
m

av
er

a 
W

at
er

 S
ys

te
m

3
/7

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
1

1
3

  /
 W

A
0

0
0

0
9

7
4

P
ri

va
te

2

C
O

LE
 F

A
M

IL
Y 

W
EL

L7
/

W
A

0
0

0
1

2
6

0
2

C
o

n
ra

d
 W

at
er

 S
ys

te
m

7
/

W
A

0
0

0
0

5
9

1
3

C
o

rd
o

va
 A

cr
es

 W
at

er
 S

ys
te

m
7

/
W

A
0

0
0

0
7

7
1

3

G
A

YL
E 

SW
IN

G
R

O
V

ER
 /

 C
ry

st
al

 C
le

ar
 C

o
-o

p
 S

ys
te

m
 7

/
3

/
W

P
0

0
1

2
0

0
2

 /
 W

A
0

0
0

0
6

9
4

P
ri

va
te

2

D
u

n
e 

II
7

/
W

A
0

0
0

0
5

9
2

4

D
u

n
e 

V
I3

/7
/

W
P

0
0

0
1

3
2

4
 /

 W
A

0
0

0
0

9
3

5
N

o
n

-P
u

b
lic

4

D
u

n
e 

V
II

7
/

W
A

0
0

0
1

1
0

7
4

Fa
ir

ch
ild

 #
5

7
/

W
A

0
0

0
0

6
8

1
4

Fa
ir

ch
ild

 #
6

7
/

W
A

0
0

0
1

0
8

7
4

Fe
ls

p
ar

 W
at

er
 C

o
m

p
an

y7
/

W
A

0
0

0
0

6
8

2
3

Fi
d

d
am

en
ts

 F
o

u
rt

y7
/

W
A

0
0

0
0

6
1

0
4

G
al

ax
y 

W
at

er
 C

o
m

p
an

y7
/

W
A

0
0

0
0

9
4

2

G
ra

n
d

 V
ie

w
 W

at
er

 S
ys

te
m

3
/7

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
5

1
2

 /
 W

A
0

0
0

0
6

3
1

P
ri

va
te

2

G
re

e
n

m
u

n
 W

at
er

 S
ys

te
m

3
/7

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
4

3
7

  /
 W

A
0

0
0

0
8

1
2

P
ri

va
te

2

G
u

am
w

ar
d

 W
at

er
 C

o
7

/
W

A
0

0
0

1
1

3
9

H
aa

s 
W

at
er

 S
ys

te
m

3
/7

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
0

7
8

  /
 W

A
0

0
0

0
8

1
3

N
o

n
-P

u
b

lic
4

3
/

P
ri

va
te

4

J 
O

n
e 

W
at

er
 W

e
ll3

/7
/

W
P

0
0

0
8

4
5

5
  /

 W
A

0
0

0
1

2
5

3
P

ri
va

te
4

M
IK

E 
W

ES
T 

/ 
J.

E.
 W

e
st

 W
at

er
 C

o
-o

p
 7

/
3

/
W

P
0

0
1

0
6

5
2

/W
A

0
0

0
1

0
1

7
P

ri
va

te

Ji
gg

y'
s 

W
at

er
 S

ys
te

m
7

/
W

A
0

0
0

0
0

8
8

4

JO
H

N
 B

A
R

N
ES

3
/

W
P

0
0

1
4

0
5

7
N

o
n

-P
u

b
lic

JR
R

LF
 W

A
TE

R
 C

O
7

/
W

A
0

0
0

1
5

0
2

4

K
A

R
IN

 J
A

IN
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

9
8

3
2

N
o

n
-P

u
b

lic

K
er

n
 B

u
ck

el
 W

at
er

 S
ys

te
m

3
/7

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
1

7
3

  /
 W

A
0

0
0

0
8

0
4

P
ri

va
te

4

LC
 W

at
er

 S
ys

te
m

3
/7

/
W

P
0

0
0

7
1

4
8

  /
 W

A
0

0
0

1
1

3
5

P
ri

va
te

Li
tt

le
 D

ip
p

er
 W

at
er

 S
ys

te
m

3
/7

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
8

3
4

 /
 W

A
0

0
0

0
6

6
8

N
o

n
-P

u
b

lic
4

W
P

0
0

0
0

0
7

2
 /

 W
A

0
0

0
1

0
1

6
P

ri
va

te

W
P

0
0

0
6

6
0

5
 /

 W
A

0
0

0
1

0
1

6
P

ri
va

te

LO
SC

A
R

 W
EL

L 
W

O
R

K
S7

/
W

A
0

0
0

1
4

1
3

4

M
ah

an
 &

 R
ee

ve
s 

W
at

er
 S

ys
te

m
7

/
W

A
0

0
0

0
7

1
7

2

W
P

0
0

0
8

4
2

8
 /

 W
A

0
0

0
0

6
8

9
P

ri
va

te

W
P

0
0

0
0

0
4

7
 /

 W
A

0
0

0
0

6
8

9
P

ri
va

te

W
P

0
0

0
3

7
0

8
 /

 W
A

0
0

0
0

6
8

9
P

u
b

lic

M
ER

TZ
 C

O
N

ST
R

U
C

TI
O

N
 W

A
TE

R
 S

YS
TE

M
7

/
W

A
0

0
0

1
4

9
5

2

M
o

n
ac

h
e 

W
at

er
 C

o
o

p
er

at
iv

e
7

/
W

A
0

0
0

1
0

3
8

4

N
o

rc
re

st
 W

at
er

 C
o

m
p

an
y7

/
W

A
0

0
0

0
6

3
9

4

O
as

is
 W

at
er

 S
ys

te
m

3
/7

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
1

0
1

 /
 W

A
0

0
0

0
6

1
2

P
ri

va
te

4

P
ap

p
e 

W
at

er
 S

ys
te

m
7

/
W

A
0

0
0

0
6

0
8

4

P
A

R
C

EL
 M

A
P

 5
10

5 
M

U
TU

A
L 

W
A

TE
R

 C
O

M
P

A
N

Y7
/

W
A

0
0

0
1

5
2

8
4

P
ar

ce
l M

ap
 6

77
5

7
/

W
A

0
0

0
0

6
9

3
4

Lo
n

e 
St

ar
 W

at
er

 C
o

m
p

an
y3

/7
/

4

M
ar

ti
n

 &
 K

el
ch

 W
at

er
 C

o
3

/7
/

2

B
o

n
n

ie
 B

ar
 W

at
er

 S
ys

te
m

3
/7

/

K
EN

 W
IL

SO
N

 /
 H

aw
k 

So
lo

 W
at

er
 S

ys
te

m
7

/
W

P
0

0
1

5
7

3
6

 /
 W

A
0

0
0

0
5

7
1



W
EL

L 
O

W
N

ER
/W

A
TE

R
 S

Y
ST

EM
D

D
W

 W
A

TE
R

 

SY
ST

EM
 N

U
M

B
ER

W
EL

L 
N

A
M

E/
 P

ER
M

IT
 

N
U

M
B

ER

IN
TE

N
D

ED
 U

SE
 /

 

TY
P

E

P
O

P
U

LA
T

IO
N

 

SE
R

V
ED

N
O

. O
F 

C
O

N
N

EC
T

IO
N

S
P

R
O

D
U

C
TI

O
N

W
P

0
0

0
0

1
7

6
 /

 W
A

0
0

0
0

8
2

2
N

o
n

-P
u

b
lic

4

W
P

0
0

1
3

1
8

1
P

ri
va

te

P
et

ty
 W

at
er

 S
ys

te
m

7
/

W
A

0
0

0
0

5
9

8
2

R
ED

 R
O

SE
 W

A
TE

R
 S

U
P

P
LY

7
/

W
A

0
0

0
1

4
2

7
2

R
en

fr
o

e 
W

at
er

 S
ys

te
m

7
/

W
A

0
0

0
0

6
2

1
2

R
IC

H
A

R
D

 M
O

E3
/7

/
W

P
0

0
0

8
7

2
8

 /
 W

A
0

0
0

1
1

9
7

N
o

n
-P

u
b

lic
1

0
4

SI
LE

N
T 

H
IL

LS
 W

A
TE

R
 C

O
3

/7
/

W
P

0
0

0
0

1
2

3
 /

 W
A

0
0

0
0

7
3

0
P

ri
va

te
3

Sk
o

gs
 W

at
er

 S
ys

te
m

3
/7

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
4

5
6

 /
 W

A
0

0
0

0
8

2
9

N
o

n
-P

u
b

lic
4

SM
IT

H
 W

A
TE

R
 S

YS
TE

M
3

/7
/

W
P

0
0

0
8

4
3

5
 /

 W
A

0
0

0
1

2
9

6
P

ri
va

te
4

So
l-

W
in

d
 W

at
er

 C
o

m
p

an
y+

A
63

8
7

/
W

A
0

0
0

0
6

5
0

3

C
A

LV
IN

 F
A

LL
G

A
TT

ER
 /

 S
TA

R
G

A
ZE

R
 R

A
N

C
H

 S
YS

TE
M

 #
1

 7
/

3
/

W
P

0
0

0
9

2
0

0
/W

A
0

0
0

1
2

1
7

P
ri

va
te

4

Th
o

r 
W

at
er

 S
ys

te
m

7
/

W
A

0
0

0
0

6
0

3
2

Tu
m

b
le

w
ee

d
 W

at
er

 C
o

m
p

an
y3

/7
/

W
P

0
0

0
1

6
7

0
 /

 W
A

0
0

0
0

8
3

7
P

ri
va

te
4

W
A

LT
ER

 S
IE

B
ER

T
3

/
W

P
0

0
1

0
4

1
4

N
o

n
-P

u
b

lic

W
ar

ke
n

ti
n

 W
at

er
 S

ys
te

m
3

/7
/

W
P

0
0

0
1

4
4

5
 /

 W
A

0
0

0
0

6
1

9
N

o
n

-P
u

b
lic

W
ar

re
n

 W
A

TE
R

 S
YS

TE
M

 2
3

/7
/

W
P

0
0

0
9

1
9

2
 /

 W
A

0
0

0
1

3
3

8
P

ri
va

te
4

W
/R

 W
at

er
 C

o
m

p
an

y3
/7

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
0

8
1

 /
 W

A
0

0
0

0
6

5
5

P
ri

va
te

4

W
e

ll 
A

ss
o

ci
at

io
n

 #
2

77
7

/
W

A
0

0
0

1
0

6
7

4

W
ild

fl
o

w
er

 W
at

er
 C

o
m

p
an

y7
/

W
A

0
0

0
0

8
6

7
4

W
IL

LI
A

M
 G

R
EE

D
Y

3
/

W
P

0
0

1
0

4
1

5
N

o
n

-P
u

b
lic

O
TH

ER
 W

EL
LS

 6
/

C
IR

C
LE

 M
 F

A
R

M
IN

G
3

/
W

P
0

0
1

3
1

8
2

A
gr

ic
u

lt
u

ra
l

ER
N

ES
T 

B
EL

L
3

/
W

P
0

0
1

1
5

0
9

A
gr

ic
u

lt
u

ra
l

M
IC

H
A

EL
 M

C
G

EE
 B

U
SI

N
ES

S 
TR

U
ST

3
/

W
P

0
0

1
5

4
4

2
A

gr
ic

u
lt

u
ra

l

M
IC

H
EL

LE
 R

IC
TE

R
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

7
8

9
2

A
gr

ic
u

lt
u

ra
l

N
TS

P
 L

LC
3

/
W

P
0

0
1

4
6

8
4

A
gr

ic
u

lt
u

ra
l

P
A

TR
IC

K
 B

LU
B

A
U

G
H

3
/

W
P

0
0

1
4

9
4

3
A

gr
ic

u
lt

u
ra

l

D
ES

ER
T 

M
EM

O
R

IA
L 

P
A

R
K

3
/

W
P

0
0

1
6

0
3

2
Ir

ri
ga

ti
o

n

P
G

&
E 

C
H

R
IS

 E
D

ER
ER

3
/

W
P

0
0

1
7

3
0

0
C

at
h

o
d

ic
 P

ro
te

ct
io

n

N
A

N
C

I A
TC

H
LE

Y
3

/
W

P
0

0
1

2
5

2
6

D
ee

p
en

R
A

N
D

EL
 L

A
N

G
LO

SS
3

/
W

P
0

0
1

0
0

8
5

N
o

n
-P

u
b

lic

V
ER

D
U

ZC
O

, G
LO

R
IA

 A
N

G
EL

IC
A

3
/

W
P

0
0

1
0

2
5

1
N

o
n

-P
u

b
lic

W
A

LT
ER

 S
IE

B
ER

T
3

/
W

P
0

0
1

0
4

1
4

N
o

n
-P

u
b

lic

A
 R

 S
A

N
D

Y 
P

O
U

LI
N

3
/

W
P

0
0

0
8

7
4

0
P

ri
va

te

A
LB

ER
T 

LE
R

O
Y

3
/

W
P

0
0

1
3

2
0

1
P

ri
va

te

JA
M

ES
 L

LO
YD

 /
 P

ar
ce

l M
ap

 8
6

09
 7

/
3

/



W
EL

L 
O

W
N

ER
/W

A
TE

R
 S

Y
ST

EM
D

D
W

 W
A

TE
R

 

SY
ST

EM
 N

U
M

B
ER

W
EL

L 
N

A
M

E/
 P

ER
M

IT
 

N
U

M
B

ER

IN
TE

N
D

ED
 U

SE
 /

 

TY
P

E

P
O

P
U

LA
T

IO
N

 

SE
R

V
ED

N
O

. O
F 

C
O

N
N

EC
T

IO
N

S
P

R
O

D
U

C
TI

O
N

A
LF

R
ED

 C
R

A
V

ER
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

9
9

9
6

P
ri

va
te

A
N

TH
O

N
Y 

B
A

R
N

H
A

R
D

T
3

/
W

P
0

0
1

0
0

4
6

P
ri

va
te

A
R

LO
 M

U
EL

LE
R

3
/

W
P

0
0

0
9

6
8

3
P

ri
va

te

B
R

A
D

LE
Y 

B
R

O
W

N
3

/
W

P
0

0
1

2
0

7
5

P
ri

va
te

B
R

A
N

SO
N

 J
O

H
N

 A
N

D
 M

EL
A

N
IE

3
/

W
P

0
0

0
7

2
7

4
P

ri
va

te

B
R

EE
D

LO
V

E 
K

EV
IN

3
/

W
P

0
0

0
7

7
7

5
P

ri
va

te

B
YR

O
N

 S
EL

F
3

/
W

P
0

0
1

0
0

6
0

P
ri

va
te

C
A

R
EY

 C
U

R
T 

A
N

D
 P

EG
G

Y
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

9
3

1
2

P
ri

va
te

C
H

ES
TE

R
 C

O
R

N
EL

IU
S

3
/

W
P

0
0

0
9

5
2

7
P

ri
va

te

C
H

R
IS

 G
IB

B
S

3
/

W
P

0
0

0
7

9
1

5
P

ri
va

te

C
H

R
IS

TI
N

E 
K

LE
IN

3
/

W
P

0
0

1
3

5
1

2
P

ri
va

te

C
H

R
IS

TO
P

H
ER

 M
 W

IN
FI

EL
D

3
/

W
P

0
0

0
8

1
5

3
P

ri
va

te

C
H

U
C

K
 P

A
TT

ER
SO

N
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

9
2

8
7

P
ri

va
te

C
LA

R
EN

C
E 

TA
YL

O
R

3
/

W
P

0
0

0
9

3
4

2
P

ri
va

te

C
O

R
D

EL
L 

C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

3
/

W
P

0
0

1
3

3
0

7
P

ri
va

te

C
O

R
D

EL
L 

C
O

N
ST

R
U

C
TI

O
N

3
/

W
P

0
0

1
3

3
5

1
P

ri
va

te

D
A

N
IC

A
 N

O
V

A
K

3
/

W
P

0
0

1
1

0
3

0
P

ri
va

te

D
A

N
IE

L 
JI

M
EN

EZ
3

/
W

P
0

0
1

0
1

0
5

P
ri

va
te

D
A

N
IE

L 
N

EL
SO

N
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

8
5

0
0

P
ri

va
te

D
A

V
ID

 P
EA

R
SO

N
3

/
W

P
0

0
1

0
7

4
3

P
ri

va
te

D
IX

IE
 S

TA
R

R
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

9
8

6
0

P
ri

va
te

D
O

N
A

LD
 L

 D
EC

K
ER

3
/

W
P

0
0

1
1

1
3

6
P

ri
va

te

ED
 W

IN
C

H
ES

TE
R

3
/

W
P

0
0

1
1

0
0

8
P

ri
va

te

ED
IT

H
 J

 H
R

ES
C

H
A

K
3

/
W

P
0

0
1

0
2

1
7

P
ri

va
te

ED
W

A
R

D
 S

TU
LE

R
3

/
W

P
0

0
1

0
8

5
7

P
ri

va
te

FR
A

N
K

 J
. B

EL
LI

N
O

3
/

W
P

0
0

0
9

5
6

2
P

ri
va

te

FR
A

N
K

 S
EN

TE
LL

3
/

W
P

0
0

0
9

5
7

7
P

ri
va

te

G
A

R
Y 

H
ER

TE
G

3
/

W
P

0
0

0
8

5
7

5
P

ri
va

te

G
A

YL
E 

SW
IN

G
R

O
V

ER
3

/
W

P
0

0
1

2
0

0
2

P
ri

va
te

G
EO

R
G

E 
B

ER
TR

A
N

D
3

/
W

P
0

0
1

2
4

8
0

P
ri

va
te

G
EO

R
G

E 
M

A
R

TI
N

3
/

W
P

0
0

0
8

4
3

7
P

ri
va

te

G
EO

R
G

E 
TU

R
N

ER
3

/
W

P
0

0
1

2
5

6
7

P
ri

va
te

G
ER

A
LD

 A
N

D
 K

A
R

EN
 S

TU
TH

ER
S

3
/

W
P

0
0

0
9

0
5

7
P

ri
va

te

H
A

R
LA

N
 K

O
O

IM
A

3
/

W
P

0
0

1
2

1
0

5
P

ri
va

te

H
A

R
R

Y 
M

ER
TZ

3
/

W
P

0
0

0
9

5
7

5
P

ri
va

te

H
A

R
R

Y 
M

ER
TZ

3
/

W
P

0
0

0
9

5
7

6
P

ri
va

te

H
EN

R
Y 

H
ES

S
3

/
W

P
0

0
1

3
0

4
3

P
ri

va
te

JA
C

Q
U

EL
IN

E 
W

A
R

R
EN

3
/

W
P

0
0

1
1

4
7

9
P

ri
va

te

Ja
m

es
 E

. L
o

ve
rn

3
/

W
P

0
0

0
9

3
4

4
P

ri
va

te

JA
M

ES
 M

U
R

R
A

Y
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

9
8

2
3

P
ri

va
te

JA
M

ES
 W

IL
LI

A
M

S
3

/
W

P
0

0
1

2
4

0
9

P
ri

va
te

JA
SO

N
 S

TU
LE

R
3

/
W

P
0

0
1

0
2

8
1

P
ri

va
te

JA
SO

N
 Z

EH
EN

D
EN

ER
3

/
W

P
0

0
1

0
6

5
1

P
ri

va
te

JE
FF

 N
IC

H
O

LS
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

8
8

3
3

P
ri

va
te

JI
LL

 P
A

R
K

S
3

/
W

P
0

0
1

2
5

1
8

P
ri

va
te

JO
H

N
 C

A
R

R
3

/
W

P
0

0
1

1
1

7
8

P
ri

va
te

JO
H

N
 G

R
A

Y
3

/
W

P
0

0
1

2
4

8
8

P
ri

va
te



W
EL

L 
O

W
N

ER
/W

A
TE

R
 S

Y
ST

EM
D

D
W

 W
A

TE
R

 

SY
ST

EM
 N

U
M

B
ER

W
EL

L 
N

A
M

E/
 P

ER
M

IT
 

N
U

M
B

ER

IN
TE

N
D

ED
 U

SE
 /

 

TY
P

E

P
O

P
U

LA
T

IO
N

 

SE
R

V
ED

N
O

. O
F 

C
O

N
N

EC
T

IO
N

S
P

R
O

D
U

C
TI

O
N

JO
H

N
 R

O
B

ER
TS

3
/

W
P

0
0

0
9

9
9

1
P

ri
va

te

JO
H

N
N

Y 
K

EE
L

3
/

W
P

0
0

1
0

7
6

6
P

ri
va

te

JO
SE

 M
O

N
TO

YA
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

9
7

5
0

P
ri

va
te

JO
SE

P
H

 D
A

U
P

LA
IS

E
3

/
W

P
0

0
1

0
2

9
1

P
ri

va
te

JO
SE

P
H

 W
A

LL
A

C
K

3
/

W
P

0
0

1
0

7
0

4
P

ri
va

te

K
A

R
L 

O
LM

ST
EA

D
3

/
W

P
0

0
1

0
6

4
6

P
ri

va
te

K
IN

G
E 

O
K

A
U

C
H

I
3

/
W

P
0

0
1

2
4

9
4

P
ri

va
te

K
IR

SC
H

EN
M

A
N

S 
D

R
IL

LI
N

G
3

/
W

P
0

0
1

0
2

4
9

P
ri

va
te

LA
R

R
Y 

B
A

SS
3

/
W

P
0

0
1

2
0

1
9

P
ri

va
te

LA
R

R
Y 

M
EA

D
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

9
2

4
5

P
ri

va
te

LA
R

R
Y 

W
A

G
N

ER
3

/
W

P
0

0
1

1
0

1
1

P
ri

va
te

M
A

R
G

A
R

ET
 P

O
R

TE
R

3
/

W
P

0
0

1
0

9
2

7
P

ri
va

te

M
IC

H
A

EL
 M

O
R

R
IS

3
/

W
P

0
0

0
7

7
4

1
P

ri
va

te

M
IC

H
A

EL
 R

O
B

ER
TS

O
N

3
/

W
P

0
0

1
0

8
7

7
P

ri
va

te

M
IC

H
EL

E 
JU

ST
U

S
3

/
W

P
0

0
1

1
1

4
8

P
ri

va
te

O
TT

O
 B

LO
W

ER
S

3
/

W
P

0
0

1
2

4
4

8
P

ri
va

te

P
A

T 
M

O
O

R
E 

W
A

TE
R

 C
O

3
/

W
P

0
0

0
8

1
8

2
P

ri
va

te

P
A

TR
IC

IA
 M

C
G

U
IR

E
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

9
2

2
2

P
ri

va
te

P
A

TR
IC

K
 B

LU
B

A
U

G
H

3
/

W
P

0
0

1
0

8
5

8
P

ri
va

te

P
A

U
L 

D
EC

K
ER

3
/

W
P

0
0

1
4

1
1

6
P

ri
va

te

P
ET

E 
W

O
LT

3
/

W
P

0
0

0
9

3
3

9
P

ri
va

te

P
ET

ER
 C

H
IL

B
ES

 J
R

3
/

W
P

0
0

1
4

9
4

5
P

ri
va

te

P
R

IC
IL

LA
 W

A
G

N
ER

3
/

W
P

0
0

0
9

6
0

7
P

ri
va

te

R
EN

D
Y 

JO
E 

SI
SK

3
/

W
P

0
0

0
0

3
9

7
P

ri
va

te

R
IC

H
A

R
D

 W
O

O
D

A
LL

3
/

W
P

0
0

1
1

3
4

2
P

ri
va

te

R
IC

H
A

R
D

 W
O

O
D

A
LL

3
/

W
P

0
0

1
1

3
4

2
P

ri
va

te

R
IC

K
 M

IL
LE

R
3

/
W

P
0

0
1

4
6

4
7

P
ri

va
te

R
O

B
ER

T 
C

A
N

N
IN

G
3

/
W

P
0

0
1

5
4

4
3

P
ri

va
te

R
O

B
ER

T 
D

IC
K

SO
N

3
/

W
P

0
0

0
9

5
7

4
P

ri
va

te

R
O

B
ER

T 
R

ED
D

IT
T

3
/

W
P

0
0

1
0

7
9

5
P

ri
va

te

R
O

B
ER

T 
R

O
O

N
EY

3
/

W
P

0
0

0
9

5
4

8
P

ri
va

te

R
O

B
ER

T 
SN

YD
ER

3
/

W
P

0
0

0
9

8
2

2
P

ri
va

te

R
O

B
IN

 T
O

R
G

ER
SO

N
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

9
9

6
3

P
ri

va
te

R
O

D
N

EY
 S

N
O

D
G

R
A

SS
3

/
W

P
0

0
1

3
6

4
3

P
ri

va
te

R
O

N
 S

C
H

IL
LE

R
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

9
1

4
2

P
ri

va
te

R
O

N
A

LD
 P

A
G

E
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
4

3
1

P
ri

va
te

R
O

X
IE

 K
LE

TT
3

/
W

P
0

0
1

0
1

3
2

P
ri

va
te

R
O

X
IE

 K
LE

TT
3

/
W

P
0

0
1

0
1

3
2

P
ri

va
te

R
U

SS
 M

A
TH

EW
SO

N
3

/
W

P
0

0
1

0
6

3
1

P
ri

va
te

R
U

TH
 A

M
ST

ER
3

/
W

P
0

0
1

2
9

1
1

P
ri

va
te

SC
O

TT
 J

O
H

N
ST

O
N

E
3

/
W

P
0

0
1

0
2

1
0

P
ri

va
te

SC
O

TT
 P

O
C

K
R

A
N

D
T

3
/

W
P

0
0

1
2

4
7

4
P

ri
va

te

SF
 IN

V
ES

TM
EN

TS
 L

LC
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

7
4

3
3

P
ri

va
te

SH
EL

B
Y 

K
IN

G
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

9
2

7
8

P
ri

va
te

ST
EP

H
EN

 A
M

B
R

O
SI

U
S

3
/

W
P

0
0

0
9

5
2

5
P

ri
va

te

TE
R

R
Y 

C
A

FF
EE

3
/

W
P

0
0

0
9

3
7

9
P

ri
va

te

TH
O

M
A

S 
H

U
LL

3
/

W
P

0
0

1
5

3
7

4
P

ri
va

te



W
EL

L 
O

W
N

ER
/W

A
TE

R
 S

Y
ST

EM
D

D
W

 W
A

TE
R

 

SY
ST

EM
 N

U
M

B
ER

W
EL

L 
N

A
M

E/
 P

ER
M

IT
 

N
U

M
B

ER

IN
TE

N
D

ED
 U

SE
 /

 

TY
P

E

P
O

P
U

LA
T

IO
N

 

SE
R

V
ED

N
O

. O
F 

C
O

N
N

EC
T

IO
N

S
P

R
O

D
U

C
TI

O
N

TH
O

M
A

S 
M

C
C

O
Y

3
/

W
P

0
0

1
1

6
6

4
P

ri
va

te

TI
M

O
TH

Y 
C

R
O

SB
Y

3
/

W
P

0
0

0
9

1
3

5
P

ri
va

te

TO
D

D
 A

 E
V

A
N

S
3

/
W

P
0

0
1

3
5

9
4

P
ri

va
te

TO
D

D
 M

C
K

IN
N

EY
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

7
8

1
1

P
ri

va
te

TO
M

 L
A

R
A

3
/

W
P

0
0

1
2

6
5

6
P

ri
va

te

TO
M

 M
A

R
C

U
S

3
/

W
P

0
0

1
2

0
2

4
P

ri
va

te

TO
N

Y 
M

EG
LA

3
/

W
P

0
0

0
2

5
9

5
P

ri
va

te

V
IR

G
IN

IA
  M

A
R

TI
N

3
/

W
P

0
0

0
6

3
4

4
P

ri
va

te

W
A

LT
ER

 B
U

R
FE

IN
D

T
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

9
2

8
1

P
ri

va
te

W
A

R
R

EN
 H

A
G

EM
A

N
3

/
W

P
0

0
1

3
4

5
9

P
ri

va
te

W
ES

T 
EP

IC
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

9
7

6
5

P
ri

va
te

SY
B

IL
 T

U
R

N
ER

3
/

W
P

0
0

1
0

0
2

8
P

u
b

lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

7
1

7
7

A
gr

ic
u

lt
u

ra
l

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

8
2

5
9

A
gr

ic
u

lt
u

ra
l

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

8
2

2
4

A
gr

ic
u

lt
u

ra
l

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

9
0

7
4

A
gr

ic
u

lt
u

ra
l

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
3

1
9

A
gr

ic
u

lt
u

ra
l

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
8

3
2

In
d

u
st

ri
al

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
6

3
9

In
d

u
st

ri
al

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

8
8

3
0

C
at

h
o

d
ic

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

6
3

0
0

C
at

h
o

d
ic

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

6
6

6
9

C
at

h
o

d
ic

 P
ro

te
ct

io
n

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
4

2
2

D
ee

p
en

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
4

2
3

D
ee

p
en

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

3
8

2
0

N
o

n
-P

u
b

lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
8

6
6

N
o

n
-P

u
b

lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

3
3

0
4

N
o

n
-P

u
b

lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

3
2

0
7

N
o

n
-P

u
b

lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
4

7
6

N
o

n
-P

u
b

lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
8

2
7

N
o

n
-P

u
b

lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
7

3
3

N
o

n
-P

u
b

lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
6

4
3

N
o

n
-P

u
b

lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
3

0
5

N
o

n
-P

u
b

lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
2

6
4

N
o

n
-P

u
b

lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

4
1

5
1

N
o

n
-P

u
b

lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

3
9

6
1

N
o

n
-P

u
b

lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

3
9

6
2

N
o

n
-P

u
b

lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
1

4
8

N
o

n
-P

u
b

lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
3

9
6

N
o

n
-P

u
b

lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
0

0
3

N
o

n
-P

u
b

lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
1

8
1

N
o

n
-P

u
b

lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
4

6
1

N
o

n
-P

u
b

lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

3
4

2
4

N
o

n
-P

u
b

lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

3
4

2
5

N
o

n
-P

u
b

lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
6

8
6

N
o

n
-P

u
b

lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
9

1
7

N
o

n
-P

u
b

lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
2

3
1

N
o

n
-P

u
b

lic



W
EL

L 
O

W
N

ER
/W

A
TE

R
 S

Y
ST

EM
D

D
W

 W
A

TE
R

 

SY
ST

EM
 N

U
M

B
ER

W
EL

L 
N

A
M

E/
 P

ER
M

IT
 

N
U

M
B

ER

IN
TE

N
D

ED
 U

SE
 /

 

TY
P

E

P
O

P
U

LA
T

IO
N

 

SE
R

V
ED

N
O

. O
F 

C
O

N
N

EC
T

IO
N

S
P

R
O

D
U

C
TI

O
N

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

2
5

1
1

N
o

n
-P

u
b

lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

3
2

1
7

N
o

n
-P

u
b

lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
7

9
0

N
o

n
-P

u
b

lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
9

2
4

N
o

n
-P

u
b

lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
7

0
2

N
o

n
-P

u
b

lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
4

3
3

N
o

n
-P

u
b

lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
0

9
7

N
o

n
-P

u
b

lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
4

0
8

N
o

n
-P

u
b

lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
5

0
6

N
o

n
-P

u
b

lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
4

5
5

N
o

n
-P

u
b

lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

3
4

6
4

N
o

n
-P

u
b

lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
1

2
6

N
o

n
-P

u
b

lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
7

6
9

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

2
5

3
5

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

2
6

5
0

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

2
9

3
2

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

8
8

8
9

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

8
2

2
7

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

8
9

5
0

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

3
6

6
7

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

2
6

7
5

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

8
1

6
3

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

2
9

8
3

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

6
1

1
0

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
5

2
5

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
0

7
6

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
6

3
7

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

5
3

3
9

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
0

6
8

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

4
1

6
8

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

3
0

3
1

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

4
4

9
6

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

4
9

8
5

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
0

8
5

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
5

5
5

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

4
9

4
6

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

4
9

4
7

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
5

1
7

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

7
2

9
4

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

5
5

7
0

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

5
5

7
1

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
5

0
0

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
0

9
0

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
0

8
2

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

5
3

5
6

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

8
6

0
0

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

7
5

7
2

P
ri

va
te



W
EL

L 
O

W
N

ER
/W

A
TE

R
 S

Y
ST

EM
D

D
W

 W
A

TE
R

 

SY
ST

EM
 N

U
M

B
ER

W
EL

L 
N

A
M

E/
 P

ER
M

IT
 

N
U

M
B

ER

IN
TE

N
D

ED
 U

SE
 /

 

TY
P

E

P
O

P
U

LA
T

IO
N

 

SE
R

V
ED

N
O

. O
F 

C
O

N
N

EC
T

IO
N

S
P

R
O

D
U

C
TI

O
N

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
0

6
7

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
4

8
3

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
0

6
0

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

5
7

8
7

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

5
8

3
2

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

5
8

8
4

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

4
8

7
1

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

7
7

2
9

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
1

6
2

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

4
6

1
0

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

5
6

1
3

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

5
6

1
4

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
0

1
9

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
6

5
4

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

3
4

7
9

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

5
3

8
7

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
8

3
3

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

2
7

9
2

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
7

9
1

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

3
8

1
5

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
5

4
4

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
5

0
3

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

3
8

5
1

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
8

4
2

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
8

4
3

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
9

1
7

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

6
3

5
2

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
5

8
5

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
9

7
3

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

4
1

8
2

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

2
0

3
6

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
1

7
2

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
5

0
2

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

4
1

8
3

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

4
4

3
1

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

4
4

3
2

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

4
2

3
5

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
1

9
1

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
3

4
3

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

6
9

2
6

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
9

8
9

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

4
5

8
3

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

6
8

3
6

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
3

4
5

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
0

8
1

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
5

0
7

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

2
3

3
7

P
ri

va
te



W
EL

L 
O

W
N

ER
/W

A
TE

R
 S

Y
ST

EM
D

D
W

 W
A

TE
R

 

SY
ST

EM
 N

U
M

B
ER

W
EL

L 
N

A
M

E/
 P

ER
M

IT
 

N
U

M
B

ER

IN
TE

N
D

ED
 U

SE
 /

 

TY
P

E

P
O

P
U

LA
T

IO
N

 

SE
R

V
ED

N
O

. O
F 

C
O

N
N

EC
T

IO
N

S
P

R
O

D
U

C
TI

O
N

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

8
2

9
1

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
1

1
5

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

8
8

6
8

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
2

6
8

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
9

2
2

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

5
5

8
8

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

8
8

5
2

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

4
1

5
9

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

4
1

6
0

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

4
5

7
7

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

4
5

7
8

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
0

8
3

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

5
2

6
7

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

3
4

0
9

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

8
5

1
9

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
0

9
2

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

3
4

8
4

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

3
1

8
6

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

3
2

7
4

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

3
6

3
9

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

3
6

4
0

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
4

5
7

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
2

5
5

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

9
1

5
0

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

4
6

4
6

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

4
8

7
7

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

4
8

8
4

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

4
4

9
9

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
4

4
2

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

5
3

8
6

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

3
0

5
0

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

5
8

9
6

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
3

1
0

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
1

5
0

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

7
1

5
1

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
6

8
7

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
0

8
6

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

5
3

0
2

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

5
3

0
3

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

5
2

9
6

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

5
2

9
7

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

5
2

9
8

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

4
7

6
9

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

3
8

4
5

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
9

8
8

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
5

2
2

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
4

3
5

P
ri

va
te



W
EL

L 
O

W
N

ER
/W

A
TE

R
 S

Y
ST

EM
D

D
W

 W
A

TE
R

 

SY
ST

EM
 N

U
M

B
ER

W
EL

L 
N

A
M

E/
 P

ER
M

IT
 

N
U

M
B

ER

IN
TE

N
D

ED
 U

SE
 /

 

TY
P

E

P
O

P
U

LA
T

IO
N

 

SE
R

V
ED

N
O

. O
F 

C
O

N
N

EC
T

IO
N

S
P

R
O

D
U

C
TI

O
N

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

4
7

1
5

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

6
3

5
1

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

4
1

6
2

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
8

1
0

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

2
5

3
4

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

6
9

2
1

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
4

7
1

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
7

8
0

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

3
9

2
7

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
0

3
5

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

6
8

1
8

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

8
8

2
0

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

8
1

4
4

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
8

4
6

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
1

3
2

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

6
0

9
0

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
6

3
0

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

4
2

5
7

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

4
7

4
3

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

8
7

1
0

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
6

0
0

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
6

0
1

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

8
6

7
8

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

7
6

6
8

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

8
9

6
2

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

3
0

2
3

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

2
2

1
3

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

6
8

7
7

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

4
1

4
7

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

4
1

6
1

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
3

3
5

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

4
5

0
6

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

8
0

5
2

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
0

7
1

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

2
9

3
3

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

5
5

9
9

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

5
6

0
0

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
5

3
2

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
0

6
3

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
6

4
8

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
7

9
3

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

4
5

4
5

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

3
9

2
4

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

3
8

1
6

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

4
1

8
7

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

4
7

6
1

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

4
0

8
4

P
ri

va
te



W
EL

L 
O

W
N

ER
/W

A
TE

R
 S

Y
ST

EM
D

D
W

 W
A

TE
R

 

SY
ST

EM
 N

U
M

B
ER

W
EL

L 
N

A
M

E/
 P

ER
M

IT
 

N
U

M
B

ER

IN
TE

N
D

ED
 U

SE
 /

 

TY
P

E

P
O

P
U

LA
T

IO
N

 

SE
R

V
ED

N
O

. O
F 

C
O

N
N

EC
T

IO
N

S
P

R
O

D
U

C
TI

O
N

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
0

1
7

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
1

3
8

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
0

7
4

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

4
6

2
2

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

4
2

9
4

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

8
8

0
5

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

4
8

5
8

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

4
8

5
9

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
0

0
2

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

4
0

1
8

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

4
0

1
9

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
4

8
8

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
0

7
5

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

9
0

6
5

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

2
6

6
7

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

5
6

7
7

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

5
6

7
8

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
0

3
6

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
8

9
5

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
5

5
9

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

4
0

8
5

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

8
4

4
4

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
0

7
3

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

7
9

1
2

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

7
5

8
3

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
6

9
2

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
0

6
5

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

8
1

9
4

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
7

9
2

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

4
4

0
7

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

6
5

7
2

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

4
0

8
3

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

3
6

8
2

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

9
2

1
1

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

5
1

9
6

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
7

7
1

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
2

6
5

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
5

8
1

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

3
0

6
7

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
3

7
0

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

3
3

9
2

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

6
5

3
9

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
7

4
9

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
8

5
4

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
0

4
5

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
5

3
6

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

6
5

6
7

P
ri

va
te



W
EL

L 
O

W
N

ER
/W

A
TE

R
 S

Y
ST

EM
D

D
W

 W
A

TE
R

 

SY
ST

EM
 N

U
M

B
ER

W
EL

L 
N

A
M

E/
 P

ER
M

IT
 

N
U

M
B

ER

IN
TE

N
D

ED
 U

SE
 /

 

TY
P

E

P
O

P
U

LA
T

IO
N

 

SE
R

V
ED

N
O

. O
F 

C
O

N
N

EC
T

IO
N

S
P

R
O

D
U

C
TI

O
N

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
8

8
1

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

4
9

0
0

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

8
6

3
6

P
ri

va
te

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
8

5
1

P
u

b
lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
4

3
4

P
u

b
lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

8
2

2
5

P
u

b
lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
1

1
3

P
u

b
lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
4

3
9

P
u

b
lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
9

8
0

P
u

b
lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
6

0
7

P
u

b
lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
0

3
3

P
u

b
lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
1

7
5

P
u

b
lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

5
9

2
4

P
u

b
lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

5
9

2
5

P
u

b
lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
9

2
5

P
u

b
lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
5

8
8

P
u

b
lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
4

4
6

P
u

b
lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
5

2
7

P
u

b
lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

2
3

3
6

P
u

b
lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
0

2
1

P
u

b
lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

3
2

3
7

P
u

b
lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
9

3
5

P
u

b
lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
1

7
2

P
u

b
lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
7

5
5

P
u

b
lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

2
1

1
6

P
u

b
lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

4
7

0
4

P
u

b
lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

2
1

6
0

P
u

b
lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
1

0
5

P
u

b
lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
6

6
9

P
u

b
lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

3
2

3
6

P
u

b
lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
6

7
4

P
u

b
lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
4

4
8

P
u

b
lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
0

5
9

P
u

b
lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

5
4

5
4

P
u

b
lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

2
8

9
4

P
u

b
lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
2

5
6

P
u

b
lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
7

9
8

P
u

b
lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
9

5
0

P
u

b
lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
1

1
0

P
u

b
lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
9

2
2

P
u

b
lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
1

6
1

P
u

b
lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
7

2
4

P
u

b
lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
4

7
7

P
u

b
lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
2

0
1

P
u

b
lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
9

4
7

P
u

b
lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
8

8
8

P
u

b
lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
1

4
9

P
u

b
lic



W
EL

L 
O

W
N

ER
/W

A
TE

R
 S

Y
ST

EM
D

D
W

 W
A

TE
R

 

SY
ST

EM
 N

U
M

B
ER

W
EL

L 
N

A
M

E/
 P

ER
M

IT
 

N
U

M
B

ER

IN
TE

N
D

ED
 U

SE
 /

 

TY
P

E

P
O

P
U

LA
T

IO
N

 

SE
R

V
ED

N
O

. O
F 

C
O

N
N

EC
T

IO
N

S
P

R
O

D
U

C
TI

O
N

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

2
0

3
1

P
u

b
lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
1

7
3

P
u

b
lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
4

9
4

P
u

b
lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

0
4

3
6

P
u

b
lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
9

4
8

P
u

b
lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

1
5

9
1

P
u

b
lic

n
o

 w
el

l o
w

n
er

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
3

/
W

P
0

0
0

2
5

8
1

P
u

b
lic

N
o

te
s

1/
 W

e
lls

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 b

y 
w

at
er

 p
u

rv
ey

o
r.

2/
 W

e
lls

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 in

 D
R

I R
ep

o
rt

.

3/
 W

e
lls

 p
ro

vi
d

ed
 in

 K
er

n
 C

o
u

n
ty

 E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
ta

l H
e

al
th

 D
at

ab
as

e
. (

P
ro

vi
d

ed
 in

 M
ar

ch
 2

0
1

8
 a

n
d

 r
ev

is
ed

 p
er

 IW
V

G
A

 S
ta

ff
/T

A
C

/P
A

C
 a

s 
d

ir
ec

te
d

.)
 

4/
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

 d
at

a 
fr

o
m

 C
o

o
p

er
at

iv
e 

G
ro

u
p

 IW
V

 G
ro

u
n

d
 W

at
er

 P
ro

d
u

ct
io

n
 E

st
im

at
es

 1
9

7
5

-P
re

se
n

t.
 C

al
e

n
d

ar
 Y

ea
r 

2
0

1
6

 D
at

a.

5/
 P

ro
d

u
ct

io
n

 f
ro

m
 IW

V
 F

ar
m

er
s 

G
ro

u
p

 L
et

te
r 

to
 K

er
n

 C
o

u
n

ty
 d

at
ed

 M
ar

ch
 4

, 2
0

14
. 2

0
1

3
 D

at
a.

7/
 D

at
a 

fr
o

m
 K

er
n

 C
o

u
n

ty
. (

P
ro

vi
d

ed
 in

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
8 

an
d

 r
ev

is
ed

 p
er

 IW
V

G
A

 S
ta

ff
/T

A
C

/P
A

C
 a

s 
d

ir
ec

te
d

.)
 

8/
 D

at
a 

fr
o

m
 S

ta
te

 W
at

er
 B

o
ar

d
 S

af
e 

D
ri

n
ki

n
g 

W
at

er
 In

fo
rm

at
io

n
 S

ys
te

m
 (

SD
W

IS
) 

d
at

ab
as

e
. (

A
cc

es
se

d
 A

p
ri

l a
n

d
 M

ay
 2

0
1

8
.)

9/
 In

fo
 f

ro
m

 D
o

n
n

a 
Th

o
m

as
's

 li
st

 o
f 

M
u

tu
al

s/
Sm

al
l W

at
er

 S
ys

te
m

s.

10
/ 

In
fo

 f
ro

m
 s

m
al

l b
u

si
n

es
s 

w
eb

si
te

. (
A

cc
es

se
d

 A
p

ri
l a

n
d

 M
ay

 2
01

8.
)

11
/ 

D
at

a 
fr

o
m

 K
er

n
 C

o
u

n
ty

 in
d

ic
at

es
 n

o
n

-p
u

b
lic

 s
ys

te
m

; h
o

w
ev

er
, l

is
te

d
 a

s 
m

u
tu

al
/s

ta
te

 s
m

al
l s

ys
te

m
s 

b
ec

au
se

 m
o

re
 t

h
an

 4
 c

o
n

n
ec

ti
o

n
s.

 

6/
 U

n
id

en
ti

fi
e

d
 w

el
ls

 c
o

u
ld

 b
e 

p
ar

t 
o

f 
o

th
er

 s
ys

te
m

s 
(i

.e
. m

u
tu

al
s,

 n
o

n
-p

u
b

lic
, o

r 
sm

al
l)

. 



Page 1 of 5 

 

IWVGA ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICE 
 

MEMORANDUM 

    

 

TO:  IWVGA Board Members DATE:  June  21, 2018 

 

FROM: Phillip Hall, IWVGA Staff 

  

SUBJECT: Ordinance No 02-18 – Establishing the Rules, Regulations and Procedures  

 For the Imposition and Collection of Groundwater Extraction Fees. 

 

DISCUSSION 

  

 This Board has previously determined that it will fund the costs of a groundwater sustainability 

program, including, but not limited to, preparation, adoption, and amendment of a groundwater 

sustainability plan, and investigations, inspections, compliance assistance, enforcement, and program 

administration, including a prudent reserve through the imposition of a Groundwater Extraction Fee.  The 

attached Ordinance is one component in implementing that program.  

 

 Because this action is an Ordinance, the Board will need to read the title of the Ordinance, waive 

reading of the entirety Ordinance, and introduce this Ordinance at today’s meeting and then revisit the 

Ordinance for final adoption at the next regular meeting of the Board in July.  

 

RECOMMENDATION   

  

 Staff recommends that your Board:   

 

1) Make a finding that the proposed Ordinance is exempt from further environmental review 

pursuant to California Environmental Quality Act Guidelines section 15273 and Public 

Resources Code section 21080(b)(8) because it is the establishment of operational rates 

and charges. Additionally, it has been determined that this action is exempt from further 

environmental review pursuant to Guidelines section 15061(b)(3) because it can be seen 

with a certainty that this action will not have a significant effect on the environment.  

Moreover it has been determined that this action is exempt from further environmental 

review pursuant Guidelines section 15378(b)(5) because it involves administrative 

activities that will not result in direct or indirect physical changes in the environment. 

 

2) Introduce the attached Ordinance by reading aloud its Title:  Ordinance No 02-18– 

Establishing the Rules, Regulations and Procedures for the Imposition and Collection of 

Groundwater Extraction Fees 

. 

3) Waive reading the entirety of the Ordinance and set the next regular meeting of this Board 

for the date of the Ordinance’s second reading.  

 

rcharlon
Typewritten Text
ITEM 9



Page 2 of 5 

 

 
 BEFORE THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE  

 INDIAN WELLS VALLEY GROUNDWATER AUTHORITY 
___________________________ 

 

In the matter of:  Ordinance No. 02-18 
 

ESTABLISHING GROUNDWATER  

EXTRACTION FEES AND THE RULES,  

REGULATIONS AND PROCEDURES  

FOR THEIR IMPOSITION  
 
__________________________________ 
 

I, ________________, Clerk of the Board of Directors for the Indian Wells Valley 

Groundwater Authority, do certify that the following ordinance, on motion of Director _________, 

seconded by Director _________, was duly passed and adopted by the Board of Directors at an 

official meeting this ___ day of July 19, 2018, by the following vote: 

AYES:        

 

NOES: 

 

ABSENT:  
_________________ 

Clerk of the Board of Directors 

  Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Authority 

 

___________________________ 

    Deputy Clerk 
 _________________________________________________________________ 
  

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF INDIAN WELLS VALLEY GROUNDWATER AUTHORITY 

ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. This Ordinance shall become effective 30 days from the date of adoption and the 

entire Ordinance shall be published in accordance with California Government Code section 25124. 

 

 Section 2. Definitions. As used in this Ordinance, the following terms shall have the 

meanings stated below: 

 

   2.1 “Authority” means the Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Authority. 

 



Page 3 of 5 

 

2.2 “Basin” means the Indian Wells Valley Groundwater Basin which is designated as 

basin number 6-54 in Department of Water Resources’ Bulletin No. 118. 

2.3 “De Minimis Extractor” shall have the same meaning set forth in California Water 

Code section 10721(e). 

2.4 “Groundwater Extraction Facility (“Facility”)” means any device or method 

used for the extraction of groundwater from the Basin. 

2.5 “Groundwater Extraction Fee” means the fee set forth in Section 3 below. 

2.7 “Groundwater Extractor” means both the owner and the operator of a 

Groundwater Extraction Facility located within the Basin. 

2.8 “Water Resources Manager” means the individual given said title and position 

with the Authority by the Board of Directors.   

Section 3. Groundwater Extraction Fee. Effective September 1, 2018, and continuing 

until rescinded by the Board,  all groundwater extractions from and within the Basin shall be subject to 

measurement and the Groundwater Extraction Fee of three dollars and fifty cents ($3.50) per tenth (.10) 

of an acre foot for all groundwater extracted from the Basin. The Groundwater Extraction Fee shall be 

determined and paid on a monthly basis with water extraction measurements rounded down to the nearest 

tenth (.10) of an acre foot per month. 

 

 Section 4. Groundwater Extraction Facility Registration.     No later than August 20, 2018, 

a Groundwater Extraction Facility within the boundaries of the Basin shall be registered with the Authority 

by the Groundwater Extractor.  A Groundwater Extraction Facility is prohibited from extracting 

groundwater from the Basin if it is not registered by August 20, 2018 and said prohibition shall continue 

until the Facility is registered to the satisfaction of the Water Resources Manager.   

 

 Notwithstanding the foregoing, a Groundwater Extraction Facility that is used solely by a De 

Minimis Extractor shall register with the Authority before October 1, 2018.  If such a Groundwater 

Extraction Facility is not registered by October 1, 2018, the Facility shall be prohibited from extracting 

groundwater until it is registered to the satisfaction of the Water Resources Manager.  

 

 A Groundwater Extraction Facility constructed after August 20, 2018 must register and must 

receive registration approval from the Water Resources Manager prior to the extraction of any 

groundwater from the Basin. 

 

 The registration of a Groundwater Extraction Facility shall be made to the satisfaction of the Water 

Resources Manager and, at a minimum,  the registration shall include the following information: 1) the 

name and contact address of the owner and, if different, the operator of the Groundwater Extraction 

Facility; 2) the location of the Groundwater Extraction Facility; 3) the name and address of the owner of 

the land upon which the Groundwater Extraction Facility is located; 4) a description of the equipment 

associated with the Groundwater Extraction Facility; 5) a description of the method used by the owner 

and operator to measure groundwater extractions from the Groundwater Extraction Facility; 6) a statement 



Page 4 of 5 

 

describing whether the extracted groundwater is used for residential, commercial, industrial or agricultural 

purposes, or a combination thereof; and, 7) any other information that the Authority’s General Manager 

deems to be prudent and necessary to achieve the legal purposes of the Authority. 

 

 The Water Resources Manager shall review all registrations and return, with corrective comment, 

any registration that does not meet the Water Resources Manager’s approval.  Approved registrations shall 

receive an approval notice from the Authority.   A Groundwater Extraction Facility may not extract any 

groundwater from the Basin until it has received a registration approval notice.   

 

 Section 5. Groundwater Extraction Measuring and Reporting Method.  Effective 

September 1, 2018, all groundwater extractions from, and within, the boundaries of the Basin shall be 

measured in a method approved by the Water Resources Manager and reported to the Authority by the 

Groundwater Extractor.  

 A Groundwater Extractor shall seek the Water Resources Manager’s method approval through the 

submission of an Authority approved form before August 20, 2018.  The Water Resources Manager shall 

review all method requests and return, with corrective comment, any method request that does not meet 

the Water Resources Manager’s approval.  Approved method requests shall receive an approval notice 

from the Water Resources Manager.  A Groundwater Extraction Facility may not extract any groundwater 

from the Basin until it has received a method approval notice from the Water Resources Manager.  

The preferred method for monitoring groundwater extractions shall be through a flow metering device 

approved by the Water Resources Manager.  A secondary method shall be through use of electrical records 

and pump efficiency data.  If the above options are not available, the Groundwater Extractor must seek 

and receive approval from the Water Resources Manager of an alternative method prior to September 1, 

2018.  

Section 6.     Groundwater Extraction Reporting and Fee Payment.   On the first day of each 

calendar month, a Groundwater Extractor shall read and record the necessary data for the measuring 

method used by the Groundwater Extraction Facility.  Before the 10th day of each calendar month, the 

Groundwater Extractor shall self-report the necessary data from its Groundwater Extraction Facility on 

the self-reporting form provided by the Authority and pay the Groundwater Extraction Fee set forth in 

Section 3 above. 

If unusual circumstances exist, a Groundwater Extractor may request that its Groundwater Extraction 

Facility be placed on a modified reporting and billing schedule approved by both the Authority’s 

General Manager and the Water Resources Manager. 

 

 Section 7. Delinquent Accounts. As prescribed by California Water Code section 

10730.6, if a Groundwater Extractor knowingly fails to pay the Groundwater Extraction Fee within thirty 

(30) days of the due date, it shall be deemed delinquent and such Groundwater Extractor shall be assessed 

interest at the rate of one (1) percent per month on the delinquent amount of the Groundwater Extraction 

Fee and a one-time penalty charge of ten (10) percent on the delinquent amount of the Groundwater 

Extraction Fee, in addition to the Groundwater Extraction Fee owed to the Authority.   

 

 As an additional remedy, following a noticed public hearing, the Authority may order the 



Page 5 of 5 

 

Groundwater Extractor to cease extraction of groundwater until all delinquent fees, interest and penalties 

are paid.  The Authority shall give notice to the Groundwater Extractor by certified mail not less than 15 

days in advance of the public hearing. 

 

 The above cited rights are in addition to those rights which the Authority may otherwise be 

prescribed by law.  

 

     Section 8.      Owner Responsibility.     The owner of a Groundwater Extraction Facility is the 

primary party liable for the payment of the Groundwater Extraction Fee, interest and penalties if an 

operator of a Groundwater Extraction Facility fails to comply with the provisions of this Ordinance. The 

owner of a Groundwater Extraction Facility shall provide the requirements of this Ordinance in any 

agreement entered into with well operators and water users.    

 

  Section 9.     New Groundwater Extraction Facility.    A Groundwater Extraction Facility 

constructed after the effective date of this Ordinance shall comply with the requirements set forth in this 

Ordinance prior to the extraction of any groundwater from the Basin at such Facility. 

 Section 10.    Use of Extraction Revenues.    Revenues collected through the Groundwater 

Extraction Fee program shall be used exclusively for the purposes authorized in California Water Code 

section 10730.    

 Section 11. Violations. Any violation of any provision prescribed in this Ordinance shall 

subject the violator to possible civil penalties and civil action by the Authority.  The Authority’s civil 

penalties and civil action rights are additional rights to those rights which may otherwise be prescribed to 

the Authority by law.      

 Section 12.  Exemptions.     As provided by law, and in particular California Water Code 

section 10730, federal entities are exempt from the provisions of this Ordinance, as are De Minimis 

Extractors, unless, and only if, the particular provision expressly provides otherwise. 

  Section 13. Severability.   If any provision of this Ordinance, or its application to any person, 

entity, or circumstance, is held invalid or to any extent illegal or incapable of being enforced, such 

invalidity shall not affect other provisions or applications of this Ordinance that can be given effect without 

the invalid provision or application, and to this end the provisions of this Ordinance are severable.   

 

 Section 14. California Environmental Quality Act.   The Board of Directors finds that this 

Ordinance is exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) 

pursuant to California Public Resources Code section 21080(b)(8) and CEQA Guidelines section 

15273(a) because it concerns the establishment of operational rates and charges. The Board of directors 

also finds this Ordinance is exempt from CEQA requirements pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 

15061(b)(3) because it can be seen with a certainty that this action will not have a significant effect on 

the environment. In addition, the Board of Directors finds this Ordinance is exempt from CEQA 

requirements pursuant to CEQA Guidelines section 15378(b)(5) because it involves administrative 

activities that will not result in direct or indirect physical changes in the environment. The Board of 

Directors therefore directs that a Notice of Exemption be filed with the County Clerk in accordance with 

the CEQA Guidelines.   



TACGuidance 

 

MEMO 
 

TO:  Chairman Peggy Breeden 

CC:  Phil Hall, Jim Worth, Ron Strand, Alan Christensen, Don Zdeba, Steve Johnson 

FROM: W Keith Lemieux  

DATE:  June 4, 2018 

RE:  Guidance for Meeting of the Technical Advisory Committee 

______________________________________________________________________________ 

It has recently come to our attention that questions have arisen regarding the parliamentary 

procedures to be used at the Technical Advisory Committee (“TAC”).  The following 

memorandum describes the process to be used at the TAC meetings. 

 

The role of the TAC is to “. . . assist the Water Resources Manager in the preparation of the 

GSP.”  The procedure for TAC meetings is described in Section 5.13 as follows: 

 

 “The Water Resources Manager shall . . .  set the agenda of each TAC meeting . . .”  

 The purpose of the meeting is to present a forum for the Water Resources Manager to 

present portions of the GSP in draft form to the TAC “so as to afford the TAC a reasonable 

opportunity to review and conduct a thorough evaluation prior to finalization of that 

technical element.” 

 TAC is empowered to submit two written reports in response to each GSP element: (1) 

“written recommendations to the Water Resources Manager” and (2) “written summaries 

of the range of TAC comments reflecting any areas of disagreement for consideration in 

the final preparation of any GSP Element.”  

 Rather than formally vote on the adoption of these written documents, the TAC is 

instructed to “strive for consensus.”  

 

The TAC is subject to the Brown Act. The Brown act requires that (1) the meeting be open and 

public; (2) that it be proceeded by a properly noticed agenda; and (3) that there is an opportunity 

for the public to comment. (These requirements are also reflected in sections 5.1 and 5.2 of the 

Bylaws). The Brown Act does not require that there be action items (i.e. voting items) on the 

agenda or that minutes be prepared for a meeting.  

 

Therefore, the agenda for the TAC must be prepared by the Water Resources Manager and should 

be limited to two items: (1) public comment and (2) consideration of a particular GSP element. 

The TAC will then meet to discuss the GSP element and strive to build consensus at the meeting. 

That consensus will be reduced to two written documents which will then be submitted to the 

Water Resources Manager. 

 

Section 5.2 of the Bylaws describes the general rules for standing committees. Section 5.2 requires 

the preparation of minutes to record action taken and requires a formal vote “for the passage of 

any motion.”  However, these requirements are superseded by the specific language of section 

5.13. Instead of requiring a formal vote, section 5.13 directs the TAC to act through “consensus.” 

Instead of requiring formal minutes, section 5.13 allows the TAC to submit “written 

recommendations to the Water Resources Manager.” 

rcharlon
Typewritten Text
ITEM 10



TACGuidance 

 

Accordingly, the TAC may elect to formalize the development of a “consensus” on proposed GSP 

elements through the use of formal parliamentary procedure such as a motion and vote.  However, 

this is not required by section 5.13.  The TAC could instead choose to develop consensus based 

on a show of hands, or any other reasonable process. Likewise, rather than formal minutes, we 

would recommend that the Water Resources Manager keep of a record of the proceedings through 

an audio recording of the meeting.  



City of Ridgecrest             Kern County                     Inyo County          San Bernardino County              Indian Wells Valley Water District 

 

INDIAN WELLS VALLEY GROUNDWATER AUTHORITY 
Kern McGee Community Center, 100 W. California Ave, Ridgecrest, CA 93555 

 

TECHNICAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE REPORT 
Thursday, June 21st, 2018, Time 10:00 a.m. 

 

 Call to Order by both the PAC and TAC followed by Public Comments.  A number of comments 

were given including groundwater supply issues, problems and locations of proper wells with 

timing and how will these things occur.   

 Combined meeting report as follows: 

o Joint meeting opened by TAC chair and PAC chair.  

o Administrative Items included in separate TAC/PAC reports.  

o WRM provided an overview of the Pump Fee process, explained the GA Board’s desire to 

get both TAC and PAC input on the draft Well Registration and Well Extraction Report 

Forms and the draft FAQ. WRM explained this joint meeting needs to be focused on the 

“three separate questions” provided to the TAC/PAC in advance. Many comments were 

then provided before the “questions” could be read, most comments were on-point to the 

three questions.  

o WRM then read each Question and took comments from the public and the TAC/PAC 

members.  

o WRM explained the process going-forward is to re-draft the Forms and FAQ, based upon 

the input provided, review the re-draft with the GA Staff Team, obtain GA Chair and Vice-

Chair approval, and then place them on the GA Board’s June 21st Agenda for approval. 

 A 10 minute break was taken and the TAC only meeting portio began at 3pm. Items #3 and #4 were 

discussed. Previous May meeting minutes were accepted however a long discussion on how the 

minutes would be recorded along with Brown Act Motion and Voting.  The TAC members 

understand the Brown Act is a guideline and may be used but is not required within the Agenda 

item while the WRM is following the Bi-Law requirements from the GA Board to instruct and 

work with the TAC. 

 Verbal update on status of Prop 1 Grant funding by WRM.  

 WRM Groundwater Modeling Ad-hoc meetings with DRI and TAC members has been setup.  

 Recyclable water, conservation possibilities, alternative water and imporation continued.  WWTP 

discussion and septic tank with effluent usage were discussed. Timing, costs and construction of 

piping and treatment also discussed. 

 Planned Future Agenda meeting items are Imported Water, Recycled water, Data Gaps—Weather 

Stations and Stream Gages, Modeling Schedule, and Pumping Fee 

 The Future meeting dates for June, July and August have been set: The June Ad-hoc meeting will 

be held June 28th, the July TAC meeting will be 12th, a July/August Ad-hoc meeting is being 

developed and the August TAC meeting is scheduled for the 2nd.   

 TAC member comments, a reminder of the Groundwater Resources Association summit meeting 

and preparation workshop June 5th, 6th and 7th.  

 The TAC meeting was finished and adjourned at 5:35 pm. 

rcharlon
Typewritten Text
ITEM 11



rcharlon
Typewritten Text
ITEM 12













Oral Addendum to PAC Report for June 21, 2018 IWVGA Board of Directors meeting.  To 

be read after the completion of the written PAC Report. 

 

I had a discussion with IWVGA Chair Peggy Breeden this morning (June 12, 2018) and, 

rather than having a separate agenda item for the PAC Recommendations (prepared 

directly after the May 31, 2018 PAC continued meeting at Kerr McGee), the 

Recommendations will be considered along with other public input and used to prepare a 

revised Ordinance 02-18 document that will be on the June 21, 2018 IWVGA Board of 

Directors agenda for discussion and approval. 

 

I did follow up with Steve Johnson, Water Resources Manager, asking questions about 

clarification of the procedure for requesting that an item be placed on IWVGA Board of 

Directors agenda.  Questions included to whom the request is made; what is the timeframe 

for the request; who makes the decision as to whether it is placed on the agenda; how and 

when is response made to the requesting entity. 

 

He told me : Let’s see what the attorney’s tell us.  If you/PAC wants something on the Ga 

Agenda- 1st it has to be something the GA asked for, and 2nd-it would be good to keep it 

short/sweet, e.g.- A.  Pac recommends the Pump Fee be delayed until_____ - Or B.  PAC 

recommends the GA fund the GSP using _____  

 

My response :  My job is to report on the discussion, actions recommended and actions 

taken by the PAC and pass along information and recommendations to you, the staff and 

the Board members. 

 

 

Donna Thomas, IWVGA PAC Chair June 12, 2018 


	Draft Agenda 062118 PWH 6-15
	5a - 051718 Draft IWVGA Minutes new
	5b - invoices
	5c - Balance Sheet
	5d - Grant Funding Report 06212018
	10 - TACGuidance
	11 - TAC
	12 - PAC
	7 amendment to adv. funds agreement.pdf
	Amendment to Advanced Funds Agreement (2)
	No.+03-17+-+Advanced+Funds+Agreement+(Both+Signatures)




